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WASHINGTON, June'30 @.—| < e

The Benate Investigations sub-
committee was told todsy thst
70 per cent of the American
, soldiers taken prisoner during
the Korean War “contributed
wittingly or unwittingly to Com-
munist propagands efforts.”
, ‘The reactions of the war pris-
oners were contained in & Te-

study conducted for thej i

, search
Army by peychologists at George
Washington University hm:nd

P! to the
. The subcommittee is studylnx

Communist treatment of prison-| 1

ers and “bratn
. bigues.

The group ed|
thnon!ylmemln!&hn!}z!
Army prisoners Com-
munist large

: prisoners. i
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. 'Some Drinking, ]
i 2d Tells Senators

" . WASHINGTON, Juns 20 @~-| §

wo former Agriculture

oot ofeials denied today that| {

they “got drunk and carried on

s kissing game” with

women at » party in dfontans

fn 1954

Robert B. McLealsh, ;:x:ml;;

slgned yesteriay 8
', Home Adminlstratos, told Sen-
S faculties” when he left the party
-".  that followed 5 busitess mueting
. in t

" Didn't Drink, Kiss
U.S. Ex-Aid Says

ste investigators ha “had my full :

Carl O. Hansen, ' former

‘ Montans state director of
the Farmer's Home Admin-

Paris Approves Basic ==
Reforms_for. Algeria ' */

By Frank Kelley |strength to 500.000 men. Whenj .

From the Herald Tribune Bureay
B 908, N.¥ Herald Tribune Inc.|De. 1054, Prazce had 62000
PARIS, June 2. troops there, he sald. .

Use the Joha David e -
Aecount'- - . e abl

. ]

._It!.s_m‘nmd‘ . ) :'fqrmu.l‘
be misled by the appearsnce ‘sd
‘eur’ “Lord Narthoool”, Dicron’

i
i

Pay

the revolt broke out in Novem-| ';

of “pacification.” - thelr

m:g'g&mvﬂmwn»dm
ment, eanctioned 8| The French seculatéd that]
pian that will triple the numberiihe raid may have been & repris«|

of ts (countles) inlg) for the beheading yesterday|
mtww%vﬂvt'l:Manmmmmm .
local governmedtiwounded included two women| iy
closer to the o.ooo‘;gov in-|gnd & ten-year-old child. .

103 KT ANAOIA
RO SR

om
‘told| istration, testifying yesters |armed strength. By

has ninety departments, tnclud-
ing the existing four in Algeris.
The Cabinet also appioved
decree, fought for by Robert
resident

can Press Association at lunch-|} .

about 400,000 troops lnn:'!l':’: ‘ “ﬂ“ﬁ uﬂ“ﬁ' ’?

or more than half of its effective

.

2500 ead 295

uny?hrn 12 East S3rd Strest, New York 2

day in Washington.
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Spinet piano yet rich end fll
of tone. Easy fo play=3 ysars
o pay—free lessons,

Orga-sonic. ’
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his outspoken attacks
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petition for
to the Uy
ga'ur‘t.'lnam'hh
: ollow! two years, &g
participated tn two , that this alleged abdue.
brought undar Seetion :j ot the

]

5
5
i

adf

28
E
i
£

s
:

g
B
i
§
B

3
!
{
4

g "°
Were afirmed on sppeal. by the .y
Mu“mwumu [

for & writ of certiorart lod

e o e

o ' Bu

After almost
\ above

k

Famous Name

SUMMER SUITS|

INCLUDING MANY OF OUR NO. 6 GRADIS
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 *SINCE THE YEAR 1701 we have been ax-
pocting ow fioe Seatch Whiskies to Nerth
m . s I. s

, ORIGINALLY exclusively for the Company’s
+« dxoutives, this rare Scotch Whisky is new

-ndhblodlodh.ﬂ.mm

lwmmmwww b

\" ke axtrs finw, light and smeoth Scotch. .

- JOTRED IN SCOTLAND MMMVM

mSeRpERATID 8w M shPS

. HUDSONSS BAY

. BLENDED SCOTCH WHISKY
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* |and that of the whole
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4. [Muste. Lettors and Sclence

OXFORD PRESENTS

= TRUMAN A DEGRER

‘ Qontianed From Page 1°
courage, I by my own guthority|

Oxford Students Hail
‘Harricam’ Truman
OXFORD, England, June 20
UP—Oxford University stu-
dents cheered Harry 8. Tru-
man in Latin tonight.
As the former President
walked some

ndmnyulmmdqmdbw-
tor of Civi) Law Honoris Causa.”

There was a warm burst of|
applause from the theatrs last-
ing more than & mimute When)
Mr. Truman stepped forward to)
shake Lord Halifax’s hand and
take his seat among dignitaries
of the university.

Mr. Truman had confessed that

i |ne 414 not remember much of
i |the Latin he had studied at

tn New College, & group of
stidents leaned out and yelled:
"Hsrﬂcuml Harricum!™
‘Truman

When M
up lhey xhouua
‘em helly Harricum!®

nmmtmmmm

poor scul.
.| Vain prayers, vain promises,
vain Gall

up poll.

rows of D

school. But he merous por 4
at the Publicl gyiopegt tor Nem-Graduste

OXFORD, Engisnd, June 2

(Ul’b-—'l‘hn a former Prexi-

t Truman received today was|
Oltvrd University’'s ‘highest for
non-graduate,

+

Now ‘Magna Charta® Urged

OX¥FORD, England, June 29
(R )—On an after-di
speech at Oxford University to-
nl(ht. Harry Truman called for|

of
encen that would m-h. dece

ter at this joke. Lord
Halifax, an im; 1] in a
gown,

F]
3
]
2

hvenmnyuwmduls
ruf- uman affalrs and of

’ moauu-mxnnmnm
'world A

rlght throughout l.he world.
Truman said that the
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one, It is a terrifying thodght
that a dlculor like Stalin—an
lrrupoui o egomaniac, accord-
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t . - Ll victed
4 " .s  Here is the “Self Caire”™ cord suit s S e e
oy . sentence
! "* - that goes far beyond coolness! . Tt o e o Staten. o
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‘ ! o out ju: 3 '
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v N i n
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4 - * Dacron-and-Cotton not deprive the courts of the
| - BATISTE SHIRTS. .
, * T _NO WATER? .
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Excerpts From the Kaufman Oplmon on Sobe]l’s Ple'.'a'

Polloving ere ezcersts from Court Here Denies Sobell’s Bid

the opinion of Fodsral District| F

Judge Irving R. Kaufman ges- ., o

suige Iroins B Konpman wol Fiop:gp New Trial in Spying Case

Horton Bobell to sst asids Ma'-, ;. 1

oconviction for espionage: l'nm P‘l‘ 1

‘The trial was beld in & man- i

ner which impelled the defense Mnomudlcmnovumpu-
.m’rt for “i.o w?:uzam:;:‘on‘:: saa and that the action violated|f,":
cou an’ extradition treaty between|}, '

The COO]. Cord Sult That o K| tastes om g’::_.,“g,?:;xﬁ the Untted States and Mexico. | K

In addition, he satd the prose-

Of Ttself!

Dematit of wny ooy ';t K tnn
of any doubt. For

and you -" | reason .n N’;

Patently, this does not show an sa hrunmy
-attempt by the prosecution to | and v el dduction
crests the !mpression af legal | were u;um.dmbﬂ.ru. for the

T

deportation, as ts now d, Rfm of these applications,
IJ- 'NmRMAm"- tor'- lntmhnn't:. Ay uggin‘s Mml;mm't :ﬁ:'mmmwﬂ :

y to point up that Bo- | tion of his um!tr
b.n- nmtnmhemtry Bntlnndudlncul%obbo-'.
man

and emmuunnd issues and,

"HEREIN 1S U "LASSIFIED
DA

bad involuntary, . e wl was
J“even 1f every one of the conten- It is hornbook law that the | setsed sad blac s Da
" |tions now ralsed was to be sus- cannot oot have imme. : .«
deuhea,lt'ouumthlhvmt evidence or facts if they are ahouted out this tnjus.
he is innovent.” , and, If | tice to the world and would
Sobell was s City oun.‘. e it is true that Bobell was ab. | have held silent for &iX months
of and Max ucted, this fact was clearly to dls trial and then
4 nncnm.m. pal accuser st ¥ - and admittedly within the pos-, Ehmxbmg the trial, holing
m,mnﬁf,"}mmt ® \ g aeagion of Sobell and his couns'| back his astory s 8 sort
low that he is innocent. in the wikr he and Sobell worked |} el bafare the trial/ trump card. snce dlo-
forms ox-enother he eias wag, 107, the o Npvy Dureau of Ordi- Y3 4 Bave hutd (oat penes onrt® | taa that vy

1 ““‘;,‘.‘;‘,.““““uﬁ"u"' ﬁ,"z chbelt Blichter sald, recrutted = 251 A B s ! the sostesien o: The ebae with which tha'pet

X .. i - o | F Y ! :'.’:d‘r:.‘:m mmu n?{."am'”' ‘M o m’:"ﬁ;‘ gﬂ’- ::q which clth.: established | the .;ro‘:oc"ul.lc{ln in the facs o '?

- £ 3 ‘ " tates berg stesl ty of certain evi | s clear record which proves the
E::l’!‘:t:ou ot eme sart o an in!Aormm:m%:w Rmn. mrw by mmm Ar g:m idmimtutity: dmmuw Trs | wme nmbuyw" et of '“.w' ar {
other, always ending with the B frorp raixing this  Prisoner ho
convictlon undis Benjmhmmn and  Luls| tion on g \motion to vecats'’oourte adlestly Witk it

Sbe sald further attempts wil
ot [be made to, get & “full and fatr”|
bearing.

merous_other: tor-|.
rallef. L .

[The court revidwed trial tee-

timony nmacbtn ';hmtrn. Sobel}’

was preparing e {llegally

from Mexico for Europe.) of law, and it im

» i Actiens Net Expiatned l.m.ct(‘u:'yumnll
Not onos Suring th:o trial d1d (. _gete, Ioul‘:tmuuml.

e strang: : tpen whode
[8abell] and thus eradicate the | ghilgation it ts to Ophold the
impression of flight and guilty | law, and the ty and in
consclousness thus crested. ity of the courts. - It is the!
It 1s the petitioner’s contsn-"| duty as officers of the court to
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g tn h! -, Four lawym these |-
of his alleged Mucm would | necusly gave the jury ths im- |‘motlons for,Boball, Californis | and safegusrds
_have been rejectsd as complete- on that Bobell’'s ex) ont | counssl among them, and peti-
[ been been ordered after m-mnmuammu‘
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" Sobell Review Urged

» SyEaropeans Reported A-Quutioninxr
T L4 uJdustice of Convicu’on‘ St

‘ The writer of the Jollowing letter,

4

30/ philosophy and leading Frcnch';
. rezponent of existentialism, edits the
. tmgaazine “Les Temps Modcrnes'”:
448 Paris, - . . :
"7 1ToTHE Eprror or Tre New Yoax Times: .
"' I learn that the American courts
&7&re soon to rule on an appeal for . )
~.~xparole by Morton -Bobell, now in-

.. mAlcatraz under a thirty-year .gen. |
" T .itence passed in Mayy 1951, for hav- C
.iing been an -accomplice -of - the - ST

~~*Rosenbergs in a “conspiracy to com-
=it espionage.” .Last May 8 Sobeu’
~ 8180 asked for & new trial. T
#»Jd-am neither an American nor n? R
urist. “ Were I either, it would stilll
- ot be proper for me to attempt to!
““=<influence the decision of _Judge: e
=Kaufman, -who must rule on lhese! e
+ 8ppekis as it wag his duty, five

-years ago, to preside over the first .

«i-Rasenberg-Sobell trial, :
" “~But there is nothing Irf law or in
. -~~international custom to prevent my:
-etommunicating with you and in--

. *&Pby many Frenchmen and Europeanst ™ - i
.J.=—and I am told by many Ameri-’
- “«cans—that Sobell ig innocent

=zthat it would be Aa*grave injustice

it 7K *Z' to have him continue to be penal-:
~s~ized for a crime which §e did noti

. - Feommit and for ‘which__proof ,has}_._' o
: TR peen mubmitted. It L
‘ - R I Europe -7 W7 T

" LkAS you know, the Rosenberg case

“iutirred up considerable feeling in| 4.,;'&4‘3: -
*Europe, where opinion for the Jast! L
- 5three years has been almost unani-! -
- - mous in regarding as .unlikely thati
To-stthe Rosenbergs and Sobel] com-l
wefvzimitted the crime of which they were
R . -mccused. It seems impossible to us
-7 “Tthat a small group, whatever their
-~~opinions and intentions, coulq havel
it e v = <o heq D able to “deliver to Russia ghe
RS i - %eGet of the ‘atomic bomb” and |to
R * “chyinge the course of history to tle
.-+ -¥edetument of their country.** - ,
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".+14 iz our opinion that there isino:
 Ate

ic secret, that science devpl-
-op:f everywhere in the same rhytilm
anj that production of bombs a
maAtter of industrial potential. The
most recent developments of Soviet
_science and technique serve only to
"reinforce that conviction. As an ex-
-ample I cite the fine article by the
‘director of atomic research in the
U. 8. 8. R,,-Kourtchatov, published

-.rseveral weeks ago in Pravda, and

:Which has caused some stir In Wen.-
“ern scientific circles.
Proof which was recently assem-

" “bled precisely confirms this view, In

‘view of the argwments and the doc-
uments that have been offered, it
.~does not seem to me arguable, at
:least in the case of Morton Sobell,

-+that the prosecution has had re-

-course, in order to force a convic-
. tion, to -false -evidence and false
testimony and has violated not only
- American law, but lntematlonal Jaw
as well. .
~3&Presumption of Gulit
* Was It not.asserted -that Morton
*i8obell and his family had gone to

.,,> Mexico without visas, and had been
,,;«prelled’ “Was not this statement,

.-«4n the absence of corroboration
-from a single witness produced
' .yagainst Sobell, a -presumption of
- guilt of the first order? Was there
-~not formal proof that BSobell had

‘-~requested and obtained, & Mexican

~~isa and that it had been confis-
‘cated On Mexican territory by the
lAmerrcan police, in violation of a
series of agreements and interna-

T ;;--,uonal treaties between the United

.. States and Mexico? Was there not

- .~tige must not prevalil
‘~-want to believe that the United|
“Btates could persist in error and

*asmg,

vproof that the prosecution was en-
ztirely aware of ;these trregularities

~were deliberately kept from the

. ~ court and caused false statements

-to be made by wntnessa deposing
“under oath? 7w -,
- It is always difficult—and we
.-French have learned this by experi-
-ence—to obtain a new trial when

““-rthe prestige of a nation s involved

.But I know that you agree with
me jin thinking that when justice
is at stake, considerations of pres-
I do not

dishonor when on the other side of

- -—*what {s happily less and less of an

irg) curtain other countries have
" umjer way reviews of past trials
dangerous and a good deal
.-mgke painful for their national sell-
ateem "~JEAN-PAUL BARTEE.
Parls, June 10, 1956 .

s e+ e i o W |

~that -major - pieces of ‘evidence|
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Rcfcrmoc ta nade to prcvloua coumicc.tun:

s ;omernlng the adbove-captioned subject, relating to

the motions for a new trial filed Ly him in the
Di:trict?ﬂourt, Southcrn Dtatrtct of New York, tn

my) 195 * ~ ::. e )
' On 6-20-56 Sobeu 's zotlona for a new trial

_ answers all the arguments raised %y Sobell in these Y

.motlons and very clearly summarizes the jfacts and
thc Jatn hwolvcd ln thia oasc. o

T )’or your hv'ormtion, thcre is attachcd |
I)f”fe;nith ne oopy oj Judgc Kaufnan 's oplnlon.
/ .. N e .

!/
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‘were denied by Irving B. Kaufman, District Judge, - “5';
- Southern District of New York. In connection with . LT Tt
this declsion; Judge XKaufman filed an opinion which g
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L

FROM : A, H. Be

SUBJECT: 'MORTO SdBELL, was Y

[ oA

|

There is attached a copy of the decision of
Judge IrVing R. Kaufman, Southern Distrlict of New York,
dated 6-20-56, which denies the two motions for a new Gandy
trial made by the subject on May 8 and 25, 1956.

This decision deals with motions as follows:

(1) Sobell claimed the U.S. Government breached
the extradition treaty with Mexico because the offense for
which he was tried is not listed in the treaty andhis removal
from Mexico flouted treaty requirements, thus depriving the
court of jurisdiction of the subject matter. The decision -
points out that the question of personal jurisdiction over
Sobell has been decided and the argument listed in this"
motion is the same question which has been settled. ;.

' Judge Kaufman describes this motion as "a twice-told tale - -
in new semantic guise.™ The Judge also points out Sobell
has no right to raise any question concerning violation of
treaty rights as treaties are made between countries and
unless a person becomes clothed with such rights he cannot
object that the court has no jurisdiction. An individual
can become clothed in such rights only if he is extradited
for one offense and tried for another.., The Judge points out
that there is no question of the court's power to try Sobell
for the offense charged.

(2) Sobell alleges the prosecution suppressed
evidence, knowingly introduced perjJured testimony, and made
false representations to the court. The Judge reviewed
all the evidence produced against Sobell, including the e

- testimony of Inspector Huggins, INS, which is the testimony )
3 Sobell alleged was perjurious. The decision points out

Buggins testified he made the notation "Deported from Mexico"
on Sobell's manifest card from personal observation and he

had not been told this by anyone. The Judge points out the
testimony of Huggins was used to show Sobell was returned

o involuntarily and not that he was legally deported.

.é.-;' Enclosure _ : . _?96
jji':) 101-2)483 : H. ’ ’ . KF?’U_‘:\',‘-" . 14 ‘Ml! /
- ptsf,'ricklers ¢ Boardman nLUUKD £D - 14 Ef JUL 3 1956
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- Regarding the suppression of evidence relating to Sobell's
- ‘ "abduction,” Judge Kaufman states there 1s no duty on a
prosecutor to present to the court a question which an
intelligent and well-represented defendent sees fit not to
raise in his own behalf. The claim that two documents
seized from Sobell at his arrest were suppressed is described
by the Judge as "farcical on its face" as Sobell knew of
this evidence, knew who had it, and made no attempt to
obtain it. The decision discusses the two alleged mis-
representations made by U.S. Attorney Saypol and points
out these were not misrepresentstions, but even if they were
they were made five days after the verdict was rendered and

could not have influenced the jJury and did not influence
the court.

In his conclusion, Judge Keaufman states the
motions are "utterly lacking in merit" (page L4j). He con-
tinues the accusations and contentions of Sobell were not

l made to ald him but to "embarrass and injure our courts and
country" (page 45). The Judge points out defense attorneys
have a duty as officers of the court to insure that a
motion under Section 2255 "not be stripped of its deep
meaning through a corrosive process caused by repeated
abuses of its processes" (page L45). The Judge described
Sobell's petition as "lengthy and utterly meritless" and
a "gross misuse of the Judiciel processes.” 1In a footnote
on page 47, Judge Kaufman points out that the FBI has a
reputation for high standards of fairness, and these high
standards were recently praised by the Court of Appeals,
Second Circuit, in an opinion by Judge Frank, who 1s well

known for his outspoken attacks on any form of police
[orutality.
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. On March 29,1951, a jury of eleven men and
oné woman found Morton Sobell guilty of conspiring to commit
espionage by transmitting to the Soviet Union, intended for
its benefit, "documents, writings;«sketches, notes and
-information relating to the national defense of the United
States,"” Their verdict was returned at the end of an
exhaustive trial, at which Sobell's two extremely able
attorneys and the able lawyers of his co-defendants, Julius
and Ethel Rosenberg, skillfully but vainly tried to stem
the avalanche of evidence against them. . The trial was held
in a manner which impelled the defense attorneys to compliment
the Court for its'fairness and courtesies on three separate .
occasions, and to state that the trial had been conducted
twith that dignity and tiaat decorum that befits an American
trial,% (1)

(1) At the start of his summation, Mr. E.H,
Bloch stated:

T would like to say to the Court on
behalf of all defense counsel that we feel
that you have treated us with the utmost
courtesy, that you have extcnded to us

the privileges that we expect as lawyers,
and despite any disagrecments we may have
had with the Court on questions of law,

we feel that the trial has been conducted
and we hope we have contributed our share,
with that dignity and that decorum that :
befits an American trial.” (Printed Record,
pp. 1452-53, hercafter R-1452-53).

-2-



. Now five ycars later, Morton Sobell has
ﬁetitioned this Cowrt pursuant to 28 U,S,C. Sec.2255 to set
aside this verdict and judgment, alleging that his con;
stitutional rights have been violatod and thast the court was

(1) cont'ad After the verdict of guilty was returned
against all defendants, the same counsel
was moved to say the following:

iir, E.H, Bloch: I would like to

restate what I said whcn I opened to the
jurye I want to cxtond my appreciation

to the Court for its courtesies, and

again I repeat I want to extcnd my
appreciation for the courtesies extended

to me by Mr. Saypol and the mambers of his
staff, as well as the members of the FBI,
and I would like to say to the jury that

a lawycr does not always win a case; all
that a lawyer expects is a jury to

decide a case on the evidence with mature
deiiberctions I feccl satisfied by reason
of the lcngth of time that you took for
your deliberations, as well as the questions
asked during thc coursc of your deliberations
that you cexamined very carefully the
evidencc and came to a certain conclusion,"
(R-1583), :

Even at the time of senteiicing counsel said:

m.r. E.H. Bloch: ... I believe that in this
posture of the case, in retrospect, we can
211l say that we attempted to have this case
tried as we expect criminal cases to be
tried in this country; we tried to keep
out extraneous issues; we tried to conduct
ourselves as lawyers, and I know that the:
. Court conducted itseif as an American judge."
(Ro 1603)0 . -
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without jurisdiction to try him, The contentions now
raised by Sobell relate to.procedural and constitutional
issues which do not go to the question of his guilt or

innocence, Even if every one of the contantions now raised

by petitioner was(t? be sustained, it would not follow that
2 : .

he is innocent,

v

(2) Although the question of a petitioner's
guilt or innocence is almost never
material in a motion pursuant to
Section 2255, I feel constrained to
make this point clear, in light of the
publicity which has been attendant
upon this case over the years,

The finding of Sobell's guilt resulted
from the collective and unanimous :
judgment of twelve conscicentious jurors,
who had an opportunity to observe the
witnesses while they testified and thus
adjudgec their credibility. The
importance of this opportunity to see

and hear witnessés as they testify has
been attested to time and again by our
appellate courts, It is clear, therefore,
that this so-called demeanor evidence

is of prime importance and that those

who have attempted to adjudge the
credibility of the witnesses in this

case without having observed them testify
are proceeding on tenuous ground,




FORMER JUDICIAL FROCEEDINGS IN THIS CASE

——
ngp—

The convictions of Sobell and his co-
defendants were affirmmed by the Court of inpenls for the
Second Circuit in a detailed opinion which contained the
following languoge:

"Since two of the defcndonts must be put

to death if the judgment stonds, it goes

without saying that we have scrutinized

the rceccord vith extraordinary care to see
whether it contains any of the errors

asserted on this appcal,™ (U,S. v,

Rosznberg and Sobell, 165 F, 24,583, 590

(C.A‘.‘2,1‘552 .

Thereafter, defendants filed a petition for
a writ of certiorari to the United States Supreme Court,
and this was denied. In the following two years, Sobell
participated in two motions brought under Section 2255
of the Judicial Code, coch sccking to vacate the judgment
on constitutional grounds; both motions were found to be
without merit and were denied in the District Court, The
denials were affirmed on appeal by the Court of Appeals and
a petition for a writ of certiorari filed after the first
motion, was deniecd 5 the Supreme Court, After 2lmost every-
one of the apovevdecisions, petiticns for rehearing were also

considered and denied. In cddition, numercus applications .

for relief were made by the Rosenbergs, and although Sobell
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did not join in than;-it is worth noting that none
of_thé attacks on the judzment was sustained,,

This then is the bnckground czninst which
petitioner makes his present clleg-tions nac nccusctions
of infringement of his constitutioncl rizhts, The record
shows thot in one form or znother the cose wos before the
United States Court of appecls six times, clwoys coacluding
with an offirunnce, and before the United St-tes Supreme
Court six ti.les on zpplicatioans of one sort or ~nother,
2lweys endiing with the coaviction remcining uhdisturbed;
ang this to1ly does not include the numerous proceedings =t
the District Court level ond the various applic~ticas to other

judges of the District Court,

BELL'S FitZ3uT COLTZ TIONS

[0 == ==y

The basic factual allezations set forth
in Sobell's moving papers are not new to this Court.
Indeed, they were first raised five days after the verdict
on a uwotion in arrest of judgment. The denial of that
motion was specifically afiirmed on 3obell's initial anpeal
to the Court of appeals, anc it was set forth as one of the
grounds supporting his prayer for reversal in the defendant's
‘first petition for certiorari to the Suprene Court, which
was denied, He arzues, however, that althouzh certain of”

theée'allegations have been i.ade before, the lezal consequenceg

—’6-



now urged as steamning from them have not been previously
considered,

| Despite the lack of novelty in petitioner's
present éssertions, and despite the mumerous nearings he has
been accorded, the Court has again painstakinrgly re-examined
the record in the light of his instant allegations. Such is
the way in which a‘democratic soclety administers justice--
carefully, meticulously, and even repetitiously -- lest an
error go undetected. Under our.judicial system we impose
a strong check upon the manner in which a prosecution may be
conducted,

It is difficult to find a case in the history
of American jurisprudence, or indeed in the judicial annals
of any other country, where the defendants' coavictions and
contentions have received the attenticn of so many judges at
so many levels of a judicial system, as well as that of the
President of the United States on applications for executive
clanéncy. Not a single legal recourse has been or will be
denied to Sobell,

In his present petition, Sobell avers that
he was kidnapped from Mexico by agents of the Mexicah Secret

Police who were acting under the ordars of the FBI, ahd that

he was thus forcibly and illegally returned to the Unjited

States against his will. He does not assert, however, that
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this alleged abduction deprived this court of any
Jurisdiction over his perscne On the contrary, he not
only concedes that he waived any such claim (assuming he
would have had one) but he also asserts that he would have
returned willingly to stand trial,

The first argument he now makes concerning this
so-called anuction is that it denied him the opportunity to
return to the United States willingly, and that it was staged
for the sole purpcsc of permitting the prosecution to represent
to the jury that Sobell was a2 fugitive from justice, He
asserts that when the govermment intrcduced evidence to show
that he had been "deported® from MexiCo; this was subornation
of perjury on the part cf the prosecutors, as they thcn well
knew that Sobell had not been depcrted in accordance with
established Mexican prccedures. He alleges further that the
goverment delibcrately supprzssed evidence rclating to this
abducticn and made misreprescntations to the Ccurt about it --
and that any one of these alleged impropricties, if establishaﬂ

~ would show a deprivation of petitiorner's constitutional
rights,

His second attack, sct forth in a separate

motion under Section 2255, is that this allcged kidnapping

violated a trecaty between the United States and Mexicoy

He argucs that since this extradition treaty is the law of the

- : 8-



land, its violation deprived the courts of this country of
jurisdiction over the subject matter of this offense. Since
uniike Jhrisdiction over the person, lack »f jurisdiction
over the subject matter cannot be waived by a defehdant,
Sobcll claims that this defect vitiaﬁed the entirec trial;
and that his conviction is a nullity,

THE LAY GOVERNING MOTIONS
PURSUANT 10 GECTION 2255.

Section 2255 of the Judicial Code permits
a convicted prisoner to move to set aside the sentence
if it was imposed in violation of the Constitution or laws
of the United States, or if the sentencing court was without
jurisdiction to impose that sentence, The court then has a
duty to order a prompt hearing upon the petitioner's allega-
tions "unless the motion and the files and the records of the
case conclusively show that the prisoner is entitled to no
relief "
| In opposing the instant motions, the govermment
has taken the position that Sopéli's factual allegations
regarding the prosecution's miécénduct during the proceedings
are completely contrary to the record, and that his legal
arguments stemming from the allegations of his kidnapping
are totally devoid of merit., In short, the govermment

upges that Sobell's present allegations furnish no basis

9- .



for vacating his cogiction either because pfgolation

of hi..s constitutional rights ar becmse this court was

without Jurisdiction to try h:l.m, and thus no hearing on

their veracity is necessary. In passing on these motions,

therefore, the Court is required to accept all of petitioner!'s

averments as true insofar as they are not :anonsistent with

the record. Pelley v, United States, 214 F. 2d 597 (C.A.7)

cert. denied 348 U.S. 915 (1954); United States v, Sturm,

180 F. 2d 413 (C.A:7) gert. denied 339 U.S. 986 (1950.)
Basically, the petitioner's allegations} are

that he and his family went to Mexico City in the spring of
1950, where they resided openly and under their own name,
On the night of August 16; 1950, he says agents of the Mexican
Secret Police entered the Sobell épartment there and arrested
 him without a warrant. When he tried to resist, he adds;
‘they beat him into unconsciousness am took him to an unidentified
building where he was detained overnight - held completely
incommunicado. The next day, he continues, he was forced

to en‘béran auto with several of these agents, and they

drove towards the barder, stopping occasionally for the

agents to make tnlephone calls -~ presumably with regard to
Sobell, When he reached the border bridge, ‘E United‘-Stat.es
agent entered the car -- though still on Nexican territory -

and he rode with them to the U.S. Customs Off}ce. Therg

Sobel) found that his wife and children had also been brought -
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back. He was "directed to sign a card", he says, and after
his baggage was searched he was placed under arrest and
taken to jail. He avers that this whole abduction was in
violation of Mexicén law and that the Mexican Secret Police
had no legal authority to freat him in this feshion; =« he

charges that they were merely acting as agents of the E‘ederal
Bureau of Investigatio‘m He further avers that at the time
of his seigure he had been planning to return to the United
States -- his trip being but a vacation jaunt -- and this
esbduction prevented him from returning voluntarily.

With reférence to his motion challenging the
court's ju;'i s’ietion to try him; Sobell rmckes the further
allegation that his expulsion was in violation of the Treaty
of Extradiction between the United States of aAmerice and the

- United States of Mexico. 31 Stat, 1818, It is upon
this last allegation that he bases his argument that this
court was without :jurisdict:lon to try him. I shall deal
with that contention firet..

 MOTION I.
SOBELL'S oomem‘r THIS COURT ucmn

JURTSDICTTON 10 TR .

It 1s Sobell's position that the United
~ States breached the extradition treaty wif.h Mexico in two

- ways; [first, because the offense with vhich he was charged
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-was not among those enumerated in the treaty as éxtra—
ditable , and second; because thc manner of this removal
-frpm Mexicd "flouted the treaty requirements for specified
official removal arrangememts with duly constituted m.th.orities
of the Government of Mexico and for proceedings under Mexican
law to determine xrobéble guilt and justificetion for |
removal."” (Petitioner's Second Mezhorahdum, P..22). These

| twb fa;cts, he charges, operate to invalidate the eubseguent
proceedings against him, because "(a)n existing gxtradiction
treaty fully controlé the national power to conduct criminal °
proceedings inwolving alleged fugitives found in another
treaty country. Absent ﬁreaty compliance, the power of the

(3). Actually this first allegation is two-pronged:
his first assertion is that espionage was not
.one of the crimes listed in the treaty and
this is certainly true - although the conclu=
sions he draws from that fact are incorrect.
His secord is that the treaty specifically
excludes political offenses and he cfdims his
was a political offense, This leatter con-
. tention is, of course, complectely meritless.,
Sobell was charged with and tried for conspiracy
. to commit.espionage -~ a non-political crime. The
. fact that he was a Communist was introduced to
show mot'ive for the crime, because unless some
reason for his actions were shown, - such as devotion
. to the cause of the Soviet Union, it would be
difficult to understand why an American would thus
spy upon his country for the benefit of the Soviet,
" And the fact that Sobell and Elitcher were associated
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nation -- and thus of its judiciary -=.-falls ab initio.
(Petitioner 8 Second Memorsdndum, .pp. 11-12), Furthgr,
Sobell contends, ‘this lack of judicial power is not merely
lack of jurisdiction over the person of the accused who has -
thus been wrongfully seized, it is total lack of Judicigl
power over the subject matter of the offense,

This final argument defining the type of
Jt;::isdiictional defect is vitally necessary to petitioner
here, as éoncedediy; any question as to the trial court's
jurisdiction over his person was voluntarily waived by
him; and the court's jurisdiction over his person has been
speciﬁ cally upheld by the Cowt of Appeals, Indeed, defense
counsel stated on oral argument of this motion: "l am not
here urging the matter of personal jurisdiction of the

- - . -

(3) cont'a. in this case also gave probative weight to

Elitcher's story that he was approached
several times by Rosenberg and Sobell to
Join their consplracy; the fact that he was
in sympathy with their ultimate cause
undoubtedly was what impelled thé defendants
to trust Elitcher not to divulge their i
machinations despite his own decision not to
take an active role. The jury was specifical-
. 1y and continually warned that Sobell was not
being tried for Communism, and I might.
point out that the jury which was selected
was one with which the defense indicated
satisfaction before they had used up all
their peremptory challenges..

.. «l3-



defendant .cce ‘That was litigated ceee A Judge Frenk
said they reised that too late and ... it had been wa:l.ved.—
Your Honor, if we were dealing with' the matter of pcrsonal
Jurisdi ction, we are out of court." (Transcrjipt of Oral
Argument, p. 34 - hereafter T-34). > o
Accepting defensc counsel's aséertidx_x, I

find that this motion is raising the precise issue of perédr}'al
Jurisdiction, and that on that score aloné, to paraphrase,
Sobell is "out of court”, Further, even assuming the
Jurisdictional qest.ion could be reached, I find that there
was no vislation of any treaty, that Sobell has no sta!x}ing
to raiae this. question and that the court properly had juris-
diction of his person. .

A. THIS IS A QUESTION OF PERSONAL JURISDICTION

]

The entire question of the effect of this
alleged kidnapping upon the legality of Sobell's trial was first
rai sed by the defense by a motisn in arrest of judgmert made
five days after the trial; at which time they _submitted an |
-affidavit setting forth the circumstances of Sobell's se?.zure.
The.‘ motion was denied on the ground that if these 'facts | |
existed; they were admittedly within the knowledge of defendant
and his attorneys before and during the trial, and that the .
defense had made a deliberate decisfion not to cal.l them to
the court's attention. (R-1590-1595). |

L~
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On. appeal to t.‘he _'Clour't.-of Aépéé.la, the
que.stiogx of the trial court's Jur_'l!sdictioﬁ over Spbel}.
wes specifically argued in defendant's bricf which cited
United StatﬁeiJsiv. Ra'uscher.., 119 ‘U.Sg ko7 (1836), «nd Cook v
United States, 288 U.S. 102 (1933), the tw> cases chicfly
‘relied on in the préémt mo;‘ionc : ;I'h‘eir_contentions were

rejeéced, | Speaking through Judge Frank, the Court

stated?

e e "Sobell waived his right to challenge
o personal ;urisdiction in this trial
cece H)e made no move to trix? to
light the factg of his alleged illegal
abduction, He preferred to take his
chances on the verdict, withholding his
trump card until the trial was over.
The Federal Rules of Criminal Procedutre
allow no such tactice." Ug&ed States v.
Rosenbcrg and Sobellé-; 195 U. 8% , 003
3 certe . grle 3“‘& «S. H
rehearing denied 3LL U.S. 889 (1952).

Despite that flat statement, ‘the defendants
contend that they are free'-to raise this quesﬁ?.o_n again
because they now allege tﬁai this abduction deprived the
Court of Jurisdiction cvér the subject matter, ani the
Court of Appeals has not considered that points It is
difficult to see how coumsel can make that ergument in good .
fafth in light of the fact th‘sa:t a‘court is dufy bound

-15-
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to raise the question of jurisdiction over the subject

matter on its own motion, even if the issue is not placed

before it, @.g, Defiance “ater Co. V. egancg, 191 U,S..

184 (1903); United States v. Bradford, 194 F. 22, 197

(C.As 2) cert. denied 343 U.S. 979 (1952), and here the

opefative facts .and chief cases were brought to the Court's
attenti’on.(“ The contention that three-extremely able and
experienced judges -~ Chief Judge Swan and Judges Chase and Frank ==
did not consider this point because petitioner used the label
"personal" Ju"risdiction? ié not only an insult to their intelligence
but it completely ignores the Cowrt's specific statement that
"(u)nder Rule 34, motions in arrest of judgment are

allowed only (1) where the indictment charges no offense and

(2) where the court has no jurisdiction over the of fense charged.
This situation we think falls into neither category.” 195 F, 24
at 603 (Emphasis mpplied).

(L) Indeed both Sobell's brief on eppezl and his
petiti on for writ of certiorari set forth
substantially the same arguments he now raises.
Moreover, in his petition for certiorari, the
allegedly misleading "personal" label was
dropped from his discussion of the juris-
dictional problems raised by the alleged
kidnapping.
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Further, Sobell's counsel concede that
there would have been no question of the court's poﬁer to
try Sobell for the offenses charged had it ndt; been for |
the manner of his apprehension (T-95)s Thus by counsel's
own admission the only lack of power was that over Sobell's
person, and the rule is clear that in a criminal case a
court has Jurisdiction of the subject matter if it has
ju;iséiction of the crime chérged. Moreovef, without
exéept.ion, every single case which petitioner cdtes
to uphold his position makes it patently clear that the
jurisdictional question involved in all cases of irregular
seizure of fugitives is the quest%g? of Jurisdiction

over the person of the defendamt, = In the Cook case,
(5) "7 Johnson Ve Browne, 205 U.S. 309 (1907);

Cos ove v. Winncy, 174 U.S. 64 (1899);
nite tates V. ausdher, 119 U.S. h07 (1886);
nited states v. Nulligan, 74 F, 23 220

T—c CoAe 2, 1934);
United tates9g§ zerris, 19 F. 24 925

All the other cases cited in petitionert's
brief similarly point up the fact that
irregular seizure raises solely the estion
of defendant's personal right to be ee of
the Jurisdiction of an otherwise competent
court. These other cases are not relied on
by petitioner, however, as they are all
completely contra to his present position, -
anc he cited them only in an attempt to -
distinguish them, The futility of his
attempt and the 1napplicability of even those
cases he has relied on will discussed '
-7 g inﬁ‘a. ’ .
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upon wh\d'x _defense relies so heavily, jurisdiction over a
"person! was not imvolved as the case concerned the court's
jurisdiction to forfeit a British vessel, illegaily seized
on the high seas, and it was clear that the soleié?uestion _
was the cowrt's power over the specific vessel.- Fwrther,
in every one of thc cases where relief was a:zted;

the jurisdictio'nal issue was timely raised, ? Indeced

in the cas‘e_.qi-""g-‘.v_d_ v. United States, 273 U.S. 593 (1927) -

a case on ”‘a.ll""'f‘ohrs with Cook -- petitioners were cenied
relief be cause the Jurisdictional question had nst been raised
on time.: It is apparent, therefore, that no .jurisdictional
question other than that of personal jurisdiction was raised
by the problem of irregular scizure, or el se the Court

would not havec found a waiver.

It is clear that pctitinner's present

(6) I shall spell osut the details of the Cook
case, infra,:

(7) Sce the fivc cases cited in footnote (5)
supra and¢ United States v. Cook, supra
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argument re jurisdiction is but a twice-told tale in new
semantic guise., He seems to belie§é that by the mere

device oé changing attorneys and relabeling his claims;

he may return to court time after time with tye eama‘basic
argument., The petitioner spedks of justice, "(b)ut justice
though due to the accused, is due to the accuser also,"(S)
and it 1s due also to the Court which in its rolc of defender
»f justice must conscientiously wade through the voluminous
briefs, affidavits and cited materials seeking merit in a
contention so devoid in legal basis as to make its presenta-

tion tantamount to an abuse of process.

B. THE TRIAL COURT HAD JURISDICTION

Although the fact that this motion is but
another attack on the court's personal jurisdiction is
sufficiént reason in itself to deny the first petition, I
find that the jurisdictional ar-ument nresented is totally
lacking in merit, end I shall briefly consicer it here;
regardless of the principles of waiver and res judicata; lest
petitioner urge that.he is being cdeprived of his freedom
of a mere techni'calit.y. Although th.is Cowrt cannot consider .
these basic rules of waiver and res Judicata to be "a mere

technicality", nevertheless in the case of this petitioner

(8) .. .. . United States v Insull, 8 F. Supp. 310, 313
(NeDe I11. 1934) - -~ = A
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I prefer that my cdecisinn not be based solely upon
these fundamental legal principles but that it also rest
upon a cohsideration af the meritse '

Petitioner's contention with regurd to _
this Jurisdictional question is that his seizure vislated
a treaty, and the courts are bound t» uphnld the treaty
which is the law of the land by finding the lfnited States
government to be devoid of power to mroceed sgainst !}im.

He argues that Cook v. United States;' 288 U.S. 102 (1933)

is controlling heres  In that case, the United States

had seized a British vessel o‘n'the high seas and had started
forfeiture proceedings against it for violati»n »f the pro~ -
hibition laws. Because of the liquor smuggling problem
during prohibitisn, the United States and Great Briiain had
entered into a treaty which permitted British ships to

enter United States porrts with personal liquor stares on
board in return for pemmitting the United States t»o seize
British smugglers while still on the high secas, if they

were within one hour's sail of this country,. The ship
Mazel Tov had been seized beyond that distance; thu.s the
seizure had been in direct violatian of the treaty provisions
and the court held that it had no jurisd:.ction to condemn
the Vgssel. The court at that time distinguished
situatiqns where American ships had been seized in foreign

waterg for violation of American law. Such seizures were

.
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in violation of international law, but the Court said
this did dot operate to deprive the courts of jurisdiction,
The Richmond, 13 U,.S. (9 Cranch) 102 (1815); IQ§IMerino;
22 U,S. (9 Wheat.) 391 (1824), Thus the cistinction
that petitioner relieslupon is thet whers a specific treaty
is violated, as opposed to general international law, the
courts will find themselves powerless to act,

This distinction is vital té his argument;
as he leans upon it entirely in his attempt to avoid the
éontrolling principle of law which the courts of this
country have followed for seventy years. - The rule is
that a seizure of a fugitive on foreign soil in violation
of international law will not deprive the courts of the
offending state of jurisdiction over the person of the
fugitive when he is brought before them, The question
of violation of internationzsl law, they have continudusly
reiterated, is to be left to the proper considerstion of
the political and executive branches of the govermment

: (9)
should the offended state choose to raise the issue.

(9) Ker v. Illinois, 119 U,S, 436 (1886) ;
inited Suates v. Dixon 73 » Supp. &8 83

{(E .ﬁ, N.Y. 195 R

- 21-



In In re Johnson, 167 U,S, 120, 126 (1897)

the Court used thé following language to explain its rationale:
"The law will not permit a porson to be.
kidnagPed or decoyed vithin the jurisdiction
for the purposc of beiug coiimelled to answer
to a mere private claim, but in criminal cases
the interests of the public override that
which is, after all, a.merc privilege from
arrest,"
This principle has becn followed again and again, in case
after casc ihyolving charges of illegal abduction of a criminal
defendant from another state or country -- cases which
petitioner has tried to disfinguish on erroneous grounds
completely contrary to the language of the courts themselves
(See cases cited footnote (9)Supra). This principle was most
recently re-affirmed in Frisbie v. Collins, 342 U.S. 519 (1952}«

That case - decided after Mciabb v. United States, 318 U.S.332

(9) Cont'd = United Stateg v. Insuli
= (’.D. IIf. 1934);

Ex aate Lopez, 6UF. Supp. 3h§9(§.D.Tega; 1934)

United States V. Unverzagt, 2 ed. 101 -
W.D, Wash. I§§KT?'5§T'd‘5 F. 2d 492
C.C.A.9), cert., denied 269 U.S. 566 (1925).

8 F. Supp. 310

This listing does not include the numerous
decisions reaching similar conclusions regard-
ing interstate abductions, e,gZ« Pettibone v,
Nichols, 203 U,S. 192 (19067; Mahon v, Justice,

See also 1 Moore on Extradition, Chap. VII,,
Irregular Recovery of Fuzitive. T

—
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(1942) had extended the courts' role as supervisors

of the administration of justice « indicated clearly

that not only are there no jurisdictionsl issues raised by
such abductions but there are no due process p:roblems
involved either., Speaking for a unaninous Coﬁrt, Nr.
Justice Black stated:

"This Court has never departed from the
rule announced in Ker v. Illinois,

119 U.S. 436, 4LL4, that the power of a
court to try a person for crime is not
inpaired by the fact that he had been
brouzht within the court's jurisdiction
by reason of a 'forcible abduction',

No persuasive reasons are now presented

to justify overruling this line of cases
They rest on.the sound basis that due
process of law is satisfied when one
present in court is convicted of crime
after haviag been fairly apprized of

the charges against him and after a

fair trial in accordance with constitutional
procedurzl safeguards. There is nothing
in the Constitution that requires a court
to peruit 2 guilty person rizhtfully
convicted to escope justice because he was
brought to trial against his will,"

One exception to this genersl rule follows
where the United States has invoked an extradition treaty
in order to compel a foreign state to surroender a fugitive,
In such circumstances, if the United States then tries the
fugitive for 2 crime other than the oune for which extradition
was granted, it will be held to have violated the contractual
obligations of the traaty and the courts will find themselves

to be without Jjurisdiction over the defendant, unless he waives



this issue, This rule was emunciated in United States

Ve Raﬁscher, (supra); and followed in United States v.

Mulligan (supra); Cosgrove v. Yinney (supra) and Johnson v. - -
Browvne, supra. The compatibility of the Zauscher and Ker
doctrines is illustrated by the fact that bota were decided
on the same day with the same Justice ﬁriting for the Court,
Ker clearly distinguished the Rauscher situation as oﬁe
in which the fugitive ié clothed in the rights of the treaty.
It is patently obvious that Sobell is clothed
in no such treaty iights. He urges that the fact that there
was an extradition treaty in force in itself protected him
from seizure or surrender save with reference to it and
that his seizure was thus violative of its provisions., This
same argument was made by Ker who was kidnepped from Peru
by a United States emissary despite the existence of an extra-
dition treaty, and his contentions were rejected. Thé
Court pointed out that the sole obligation the surrendering
state undgrtékes in an extraditién treaty is that it will bind
itself to extradite fugitives sought for cerﬁain enumerated
offenses, where formerly it could have used its own discrétion,
And the sole obligation of the demandingzstéte is that if it
invokes fdrmal extradition proceedings, it will try the
surrendered fugitive only for the spcecific crime charged.

Informal expulsion procedures arc still available to the
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surrendering state both #F erumerated and ceitainly for dond
enumerateg'crimes, sce IV. Hackworrth Digekt of fnteré
national Law, Chapter XII:;. and if the demaming btdé

recovers its ﬁxgitivea through illegal channels in
violation of ansther nation's s>vereignty, that c;eates a
questi»n for the political branches »f the governinent, but
does not raise any concerninz judicial jurisdictinn, "See
Mhare, ops_cit. | '

Thus the petitioner is certainly not within
the rule of the Rauscher case, nop is his situation even
remotely similer to that of the British ship seized in %.(10)
Further, his swn allegations indicate that the Mexd can B |
Police were the chief actors in his abducti :»n; although
he charges that they were acting illezallys This ineans
his argument is blncked als> by the rule that even & diplomatic
demand for the return >f an illegelly seized fugitive need
n>t be honored where »>fficials »f the asylum state took part
in the illegal seizure, Nnté, Kidnaping of Fﬁgiﬁives from
Justice on Foreign Territory, by Lawrence Preuss; 29 Ameri'can .
J.oqrnai »f Internationsl Law 502, 507 (July 1935). It is
nitewrthy that the petitioner has not even mggééted'that

e -

(10) The sole remaining ‘case cited by Sobell

- - - - @as supporting his position is Ugit‘.ed Sta%es -
) Ve Ferris’ 19 F. 2d 925 (N'Do . ? .' Lt
S and” that case is on al]. fvurs thh ook_. ' .

-
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It is clear that Sobell's argumcnt that
this Corurt lacked jurisdictisn t» try him because of his
alleged illegal abcducti-n would have been rejected as

such a demand w! ever mace by Mexiom,

completely fallacisus even had it been timely raised, and
this is und>ubtedly the reassn his adroit lawyers
- refreined from making this m>tion emong their numerous
ot:her applications for pre~trial relief,

Since thc trial courts undrubtedly had
Jurisdiction wer the subject matter, we shall now proceed
t> examine the second moticn in arder to determine whether the
prosecution's actions were of such a nature as to deprive the
petitioner of his constitutional rights, and vitiate the
proceedings.

II. SOBELL'S CONTE.TION THAT HE WiS DENIED
DUE PROCESS OF LaW.

Sobell's contentions here are that the
pro secution suppressed evidence, knowingly intr>duced
‘perjured testimony ?ﬁ)false evidence, and made misrepresenta-

tions t> the court. Since his contentions are based in

(11) The law is clear that if the prosecution
knowingly either introduces perjured
evidcnce egainst a defendant, or suppresses
evidence favarable to him or makes mis- :
representations to the court during the
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part upon occurrences at the ‘trial, I shall set forth
the relevant background brieflf_.,

The drect evidence against Maxrton Sobell
fell into two categories. .F:lrst, Max Elitcher; a close
friend, testified that Sobell had taken an zctive part in the
oonspiracy and had attempted to get him to reveal secret
information eoncerning the national defense. This testimony
was totally damning and convincing t> the Jury; and he was

subjected to an intensive and exhaust.i(.;g)cross-examination

" by the attorneys for both defendants. The court charsged the

jury specifically that they were to acquit Sobell if

(11) cont'd trial, that defendant is entitled to
relief pursuant to Section 2255. -The
cases cited by petitioner all merely
illustrate these well known mexims
by which I must be guided. I do not
set them forth at length here becczuse

" there is no controversy as ts the guiding
rules of law, there is merely a question
as to whether petitismerts allcgotions
make out a case urder them,

(12) Elitcher's cross~examination lasted

two days and occupied 121 pages in the
- printed record., - R-2064-379, R-388-394,



they did not believe Elitchers. The Jjury convicted,
In short;-.t.he defendant was cl_early proven to be an arch
conspiratar with the Rosenbergs in their plan to> commit
espionage against the United States by traffickinz in our
deepest military secrets -- a crime of the higbest mazgnitude, .
The second category of evidence against
Sobell ralated to his intent to flee the country. It had
been brought out mreviously by David Greengless that Julius
Rosenberg, the head of the espionage ring; had wged him
and his famjly to flee if the FBI started to close in,
and had given Gr‘eenglass $I+; 000. to flee to Mexico and thence
to Europe via Tampicos. (Re=522-537).. 'Subsequently; it was
established .that Sobell had gone to Mexico with his family
in the spﬁ% of 1950.. He had gone openly and under his

own name; however, it was shown without contradiction

(13) It is noteworthy that the mrosecution
made no mention of Sobell's manner
of departing from this country, and
that his own attorneys did not see fit
to introduce the airline manifests
which showed that the family had ‘
traveled under its own name, &although
the defense did argue this point in
summation. (Re1502-1504), -

=28~



that while in.Mexiéo Sobell had traveled to both

Tampico and Vera Cruz usiné aliases; that he had
inqﬁired as to how he mighf leave Mexticec for Europe
without propecr papers; that whilec in Taup’ec and Vera
Curz he had enclosed letters to his wifc in kexico City
ih quarked envelopes sent to a ncighbor; and that while
in Mexico he had sent letters to his family in mmerica;

not directly, but enclosed in envelopes which listed

false namcs as rcturn addressecs, and hc had sent these
envelopes to a friend requestiné that hec forward the
letters. These facts were bfougﬁt out by six dis-
interested witnesses, and the defense made no attampt to
cross-examine them and even conceded the use of several
of these different aliases.,

William Danziger, an old friend of Sobell's;
ﬁéstifiéd thaﬁ he had received letters from an . Sowell
ahd.F; LevitoQ as the return addressees residing in Mexico;
that he had opened them and found a note from Sobell request-
ing ﬁhat he forward the enclosed letters to other members of
the Sobell family, Sobell also requested Danziger to tell
another relative that Sobell could be reached under the name -
of M. Sowell at a épecified street address in Mexico.

Danziger was not cross-examined. (R-857-867).
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. ~ Thereafter, the government called to the
stand Manuel Giner De Loé Rios, a neighbor of the Sobells
in Mexico Ciﬁy. De Los Rioé te;tified that Sobell had
apprﬁached‘him for information as to how a person could leave
México without papers, ;aying‘that he was afraid to return
to the United States because he did not want to go back into
the Army; having glready experiencéd one war, (R-922),
It was subsequently shown that Sobell had never been in the
| Army, ﬁaving been continually deferred. (R-955). De Los
Rios also testified that Sobell had left his family and
traveled to both Tampico and Vera Cruz¢ He knew this because.
during Sobell's absence, he had recgived'two umark ed
envelopes bearing postuarks from those two cities; inside
each he found a letter beginning "Dear Helen® (the name
of Sobell‘s wife), and he had turned both letters over to
Mrs. Sobell, Again there was no cross-examination.,
(R-924-926)

| Subsequently, Minerva Bravo Espinosa,

a clerk in & Vera Cruz optical store, testified that Sobell
had ordered a pair of glasses from her uging the name M,
_Sand, and.defense coﬁnsel'conceded thiS’facil (R-927-930) .
Simila:;y, Jose Broccado Vandrell testified that Sobell had

registered at his hotel in Vera Cruz as Morris Sand; -
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again this fact was conceded and therc was no cross-
examination. (R-931-932), Dora Bautista, a hotel clerk
in Témpica, testified that Sobell hacd registcred in her
hotel as Marvin Salt, and this too was cornceled, (R-933-
934). Glenn Dennis, an official of the iiexican Airlincs,
was called to testify, and via his testimony and defense
concessions it was estcblished that Sobell had flown from
Vera Cruz to Tampico under thc name of N. Sand, and

from Tampico to lMexico City uncer the neme of iHorton
Solt. (R-935-938).

Not once during the trial did the defense
atteapt to explain the strange actions of this man and thus
eradicate the impression of flight and guilty consciousness
thus created. In sumnction ‘efensc counsel mercly
referred to these actions as "a brainstorm™ which he said’
was nonc of anyone's business. (R-1503-150L),

Immediately after these #£1light" yitnesses were
callod, the govermment attempted to introduce an immigration
manifest card noting Sobell's return to the United States; the
card was marked ‘‘"deported from liexico®, Thec government
attenpted to introduce it as a rCCOrd:made in the ordinary
course of business by the Immigrzation Scrvice, but upon ob-
Jection, the card was not allowed into evicence until the
following day when James S. Huggins, the Immigratioﬁ Inspector
who had filled out the card, was flown to New York from Texas
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to authenticatz it, He testified that the card was
made out in the rcgular coursc of his duties, that he had
obtained the information on it from Sobecll himself when
Sobell was brought to the border, except for the information
regarding Sobell's—"deportation". He expleined that he had
made the notation based on his'gersondl observation that
Sobell hzod been brought across the border by Mexican police.
Despite repeated insistent‘qucstioning by defense counsel, he
never suggested that he had made the entry because of any
official information given him by the liexican authorities
or agents. He reiterated that the eatry was based solely
upon his observations at the time, and that he obtained
Sobell's signature by telling him that all deportees must
sign such cards. (R-1025-1037).

It is largely unon Huggins' testimony that
petitioner bases his claims regarding suppression of evidence

and perjury.

A  THERE VAS HO PERJURY

It is the petitioner's contention that
Huggins perjured himself when he'testified that Sobell had
been deported as he then well knew that Sobell's seizure
had been contrary to Mexican deportation proceduref and the

prosecution was allegedly in possession of this information
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also. Petit;onéf urges that this was harmful as it
erroneously gave the jufy the impression that Sobell's
expulsion had been ordered after lexico hzd made a prior
determination of his guilt via a legal derortation proceeding.

This contention is clearly refuted by the
cold record which shcws that tine after time Huggins insisted
that his notation was not based on official sources, but was
based solely upon'his own observations of Sobell's summary
ejection, It is entirely clear that he was using the word
“deported to mean expelled or ejected, and clearly even
Sobell must have understood the notation to have that meaning
as hé himself signed the card when told that all deportees
must do so,

It should also be noted that in summation,
Mr, Kuntgz, Sobell's attorney, pointed out that Sobell had
not been legally deported from Mexico; he argued that if
Sobell had been deported the govermment would have shown it by
other nmore competent evidence, (R-1505;1506),A When kr. Saypol;
'“fhe prosecutor, sumned up, he riowhere stated -~ or even in-
ferred -- that Sobell had been legally deported, but stated
instead that "the FBI caught up with him and brought him back
and you have him here," (R-1524). Patently, this does ot
show an attempt by the prosccution to create the impressﬁbq of

legal deportation as is now charged, Manifestly, it was the
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présecutidn‘s intention to usc Huggins' testimony to

poinf up that Sobell's rcturn to this country had been .
involuntary. | Thus it was the natgfal capstone %o the clear
and convincing testimony regarding Sobecll's attempt‘to flée.
Obviously, the defensce attorneys also belicved this was the
so}e purpose of introducing that evidchcé. They did not even
attempt to bring the question of improper derortation pro-
cedures to the attention of the Judge out of presence of the
jury - a device they had frequently enployed throughout the
trial -- despite the fact that 24 hours elapscd between the
time defensc counsel saw the immigration manifest and the time
that it was finaliy introduced into cevidence via Huggins'

(14)
testimony,

(14) Uzon oral ergument of the present motion,
the petitioner's counscl made an issue
of the fact that the presccutors have not
submittced affidavits with rogard to their
urposc in introducing Hugzins' cevidence,
his type of argument complotely disrcgards
. . . v the cold, sterk reality, that it is not
e what the ﬁrosecution intended that matters

- but what Huggins actually said and did.

d And I am surce that had such affidavits been .
introduced to show that the prosccution sought
only to establish involuntary return, not
legal deportation, the petitioner's attorneys
would have insistcd just as vehcmently that
the prosecutors' state of mind was completely
immaterial, -
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Clcerly Hug-ins' tcstimony was not pcrjurious;
nor was the manifcst falsé, 28 it could risc no higher than
Huggins' explanation rcgarding thce Ydopcri~tion® notation,
Thus petitioner's allegations of perjury nrc conipletcly
unfounded.,

B. .THE GOVERNM@QZ_QID NOT . SUPPRESS ANY EVIDENC

~{1) It did not suppress cvicdence
regarding Sobell's alleged abduction.

Scbell's first contention regarding suppression
of evidenée is that the govermment sugpressed the fact that
hc had been illegally abducted, both before trial &nd during
ite I shall first decal with the prosecution's conduct
beforc trial.

It is hcrnbook law that the prosccution
Qaénot suppress ovidence or focts if they are known to the
defense, and.if 1t is truc that Sobell was abducted, this
féct was clearly and admittedly within thelpossession of
Sobell and his counscl before the trial, Indecd, his
affidavit mekos it clear that Sobell knew thot this alloged
illegal scizurec was highly irregplér. The petitioner now
alleges that the defense was not in possession of sufficient
facts showing that thé FBI had instigated this procedure as
is charged now -- but this is hard to bclieve in light of
Sobell's assertions in his first affidavit, submitted 4n
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support of his motion in arrcst of judgment, - that an FBI
agent was weiting for him on the Mexican sides .

Further, there is no duty upon a prosccutor
to present to the court a question which zn int:lligent and
wcll-represeﬁted défendﬁnt gsees fit not to raisc on his own
bechalf, and which if rziscd, would be based nceessarily on an
argumenm'that the Sunrame Court should reverse a éo year old .
rule of law.(IS) ,

Decaling next with‘the contention that the
prosecution should have brought out the facts regerding the
alleged kidnapping during the trial -- I cannct sce in what
way this would have becen béneficial to Sobell, nor quite
obviously, could Sobcll's trizl attorncys for they saw fit
not to raisc the issuc beforc or during the trial. Even if
this story might have crcatod some sympathy for the defendant;
it was incumbent upcn the dofense to raise this issue, if
indecod the ﬁnbellishments were n.t a figrment of Sobell's ine
agination.

Since the defcnsc had not. secn fit to object to

Sobell's alleged abduction;'thcre was no gr:und upon which

.
»>

(15) That this jurisdictional issue could
S be waived and that the law would have
been contrary to the pectitioner's
assertions, assuming hc had decided to
raise this issue, was spelled out in
my discussion of his first motion infra.
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evidence regarding his involqntary ;et;rn could be kept
out; and -as I previously pointed out, Huggina did not
perjure himself, He merely stated that Sobell had been
‘brought to the border by'Mexicon Socret Police anc he
" stated further that the FBI was woiting for him,.
The petitioner now oontendo that to rebyt

Huggins' testimony of seemingly routine expulsion, the =
defense would have had to put Sobgll‘oh the stend and that
forcing this choice was unconstitutional, There are

three grounds for rejecting this aréoment; each suf-
ficient in itself,: |

First, factually, this is not so. There
were other avajlable means of telling Sobell;s story:
(a) Sobell's own affidavit attosts that Mrs. Sobell

was & witness to the abductiong ghe was in court, but
Sobell saw fit never to ask her to testify{ " (b) The
record indicates that the defense had subpoenaed certain

Mexican official documents -- but decided not to
* 4ntroduce them, 1Indeed, a representativé of the Mexican

govermment yaé in court and was excused by the defense,

(c) . ‘The defense did nit even cross=examine Huggins on this poimt
in ‘an attempt to elicit from him thét Sobell was in an obviously

dazed condition, garbed in blood spattered clothes ‘and

that he oomplained to Huggins of his mistreatment, as
a7
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petitioner now avers.. As the Court of Appeals for the
District of Columbia Circuit stated in Smith v, United Statess’

"The right to impcach ... witnesses and to
bring out on crmss-exanination the facts
as to the alleged misconcduct »f the police
are’ sefeguards of appellantfs riznt under
the due process clause t> a fair trial,”
187 F, 2d 192, 199 (CyaeDsCe 1950) certs
denied 341 U.$. 927 (1931) A

Second, the fact that Sobell might have

had to take the stand to mresent his story does not mean he

was denied his rights, . A

' "The Constitution safeguards the right of a

defendant to remain silent; it does not
assure him that he may remain silent and
still enjoy the advantages that might have
resulted from testifyinf);." - Stein v, N.Y,

Aml it is obvious that Sobell had more to

expiain than just the testimony »f Huggins; Hugging! notation
that he was "departed" from Mexico whuld have been practically

- meaningless except in the context >f the sther witnesses

: regarding his flight; witnesses t> whom I have referred and
whose testimony Sobell d>es not challenge even now,- It is
interesting t> note that Sobell's first attempt to explain

his actions in Mexico came in an affidavit submitted on his

. original appeal to the ‘Court f ﬁppeals; a most'-' unusﬁ_al o=
c.edure; wherein he statgb that the arrest »f Julius Rosenberg:
made him think Ameri_ca'x was sbout t5> ‘enter @ state of totalitarian

[
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repression of ﬁg gpeech, that he decided ¥5 flee and

used aliases trying to finc out how t> leave Mexico

illegally and that he then changed his mind,  This belated ex-
planation was ncver put befare the jury, as he an’ his attorneys
undoubtedly decided it would be wiser not to > so, .

Sobell may nnst now _be‘ hearc t»> ufge that he 1s entitled to

a new trial because the defense strategy on the firstA

trial was not as soundly based as second guessing and

fictional fantasies wbsequent;ly created incicate to him

that it might haveA been, |

"(It is) »f the essence »f arderly trials
that the right to csunsel accorded to
defelants by the oxnstitution be not
regarced, as the argument here whuld seem
to regard it, as a mere one way street
such that if the strategy anc tactics -
of his trial counsel; in cetermining not
th raise constitutional questions, prove
unsuccessml, cefendant ... may many years
later set it asicde in order that, on annther
trial with ansther counsel, ansther cohurse
raising these questicns muj ‘be taken and s> on
ad infinitum,® Bawen v. United States,

5 eAs 5 I;;I’ cert. .‘
denied 3&3 U, S. 9&3 (1952).

This principle set forth in Bowen is equally
applicable t» the thiyd grounds for rejecting Sobell's
ergument., Even assuming that the introcduction of the
| ‘evidence regarding his testimony was improper -- am I have

pointed out that this is not the case -- he is berred from



raising that question now, Time after time the courts
have helcd that whenever knowlecze was in the possession of
defense counsel curing trial of facts which either
established the impropriety of certain’evidence, 2 even
cast doubts upon its admissibility, they are barreld from
raising this question on a motion' t> vacate jxx’.gﬁlent,.
Questions on the admissibility of improper evicdence may be
rai sed solely upon appeal from the conviction.(lé)

"Where parties, even in a criminal case,
knowingly an< 'c.eliberetd.y adopt a ccurse

of procedure which at thctims appears to

be to their best interest, they cannot be
pernitted at a later time, after a decision
has been rendecred adverse to them to obtain a
retrial accxrling t» procecdure which they
have wnluntarily discarded and waived,"
Carruthers ve Reed, 102 F. 2d 933 (C.Ae 8)
cert. denscd 307 U.S. 643 (1939).

(2) N5 other evidence material to Snbell's -
case was suppressed.

The petitioner als» contends that two.
documents which were seized from him at the time -f his
abduction were suppressed; they are his tourist card and a

vaccination certificate, This comtention is farcical on its

(26) ' United States v. Lawrence, 216 F. 2d 570
. 7 s Dauer V. United States,

%?,lé g.szuségl(zg;""mns K{ corte {;eme% :

. 3 cin v, Unite tates
204 F. 2d 513 (Cohe 7, 1053); ‘r“s"""“t Ve ’
3 : . cert. denied 31.1 U.S. 927 (1951) ‘

o . | -z,c;
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face, as Sobell knew of the evidence. He also knew who had it.
eand never sought its production, ﬁhbugh he sought the
production of nuwaerous other documents, Further, tae two
items in question were not mater1a1 to oét‘tioner 's caseq:

The first of these, his tourist card, could
have established merely that 3obell went tp wexico under his
own naue; tihis was never denied or mentioned by théApro -
secution, and was specifically referred to by lLr. Luntz in
summation, Further, defendant's exhibits in this motion
indiéate that Sobeil's attorneys had manifests of the eirline
on hand which cleariy show ed he traveled in his own name.
They obvio usly decided, for trial strategy, not to
introduce them, i

AS for the vaceination certificate, Sobell
claims this shows he intended to return to the United States
as it would be necessery for re-entry; he nezlects to
mention that this was an international certificate equally
vaglid and equally decessar& for entry into many foreign

countries,

b

(16) cont'd, H1111ard v. United States, 185 F 2d 454
oo ,1950)7 Howell v, United statésg
172 F, 2d 213 (C;A.h) cert, denied -

337 UyS5,906° (1949) Jted otates v
*  Kranz, 56 F, 3up 772 TD.1 Je Y049
United States v, Cameron, 84 F,’ aupp. 289

(STﬁI"ETEET‘I9A9)
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C. THE .PROJECUTION i.aDE NO MISREPRESENTATIONS
. AU THa GUUKT,

Both alleged misrenresentetions which I
shall hereafter set forth, were made to the Court Py o o
vaypol after tne verdict had been rendered, unon aréument
of the wmotion in arrest of judgment, It is difficult to see
how by the wildest stretch of the petitioner's vivid
imagination these comments could have influenced the jury's
vefdict} Lorebver, his comients had no effect on post- '
trial pfoceedings. ~side from my own versonal recollections;
it is clear from the record that i.r. saypol's renarks were
completely imi.arerial to the reasons behind the initial
deni§1 of the mnotion in arrest of judgrient; the denial was
based solely upon wsiver, and irxr. Say-ol's remarks did not
deal with that question, Finally, even if ixr, vaypol's remarks
could conceivably be cons:dered as having had any influence
upon the trizl court- to say nothing of the Court of Anpeals!
later independent determination of this question -- any
possible harm done was negatived by the fact that petitioner
has here been given an opnortunity to relitigate in full
the questions he rsised on that first motion.

Since the remarks char ed-to Mr, Saypol were
not false, however, and since I do not like to see men smeared

by baseless accusationé, I' shall deal with them briefly. -
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First, when Sobell's initial petition.was
read to the Cowrt on the motion in arrest of judgment, ‘
it contained lanzuage to the effect that, when arrested,
Sobell had tried to show the agents his visa,
wre Saypol pointed out "this very affidéQit/contains a
falsehood in tiie statement that there wss exlhiibited amongzst
other things to the i.exican authorities visas, Counsel
ought to know that his client never went into Mexico with
a visa." (R-159&}, That Sobell never had a visa is now
conceded by his attorneys; he had a tourist card, ana
there is an appreciable difference between t..e two,

Second, i.r, saypol is charged with having.
told the Court that Sobell was "kicked out” as a denortee,
rwhereas in fact, Sobell wes not legally derorted, Ixe
3aypol'!s stateuent haé been lifted comnletely out of
context; he made that comment when characterizing the
contents of Sobell's own affidavit, He stated: iThe
whole affidavit portrays certainly that tiis défendant
was noﬁ honorably escorted fron Lexicé but that literally
he was kicked out as a devortee," That sentence speaks

(17 .
for itself.  (R-1598-1599), S~

A . : o -
(17) It is also interesting to compare .
petitioner's present unfounded -
accusations against the prosecution

with the statement by his defense counsel:
after the jury delivered its verdict,

ire Kuntz stated: "I want to say to lLir,

43—
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CONCLUSION

My consideration of the contentions urged
in petitioner's second motion leads me to the conclusion

that they are as utterly lackingz in nerit as are his ( 8)
. _ 1

cohtentions regarding the Courﬁ's lack of jurisdiction.

(17) cont'd Saypol as an officer of this court
as one officer to another, I am wiiling to
shake his hand after 2 job that we both
had to do." (R-1583)

(18) In short, I am led to the same con-
clusion that was reached by my colleague
Judge Ryan after he had examined the
contentions of all three defendants on
their first motion pursuant to ‘
Section 2255.

71 have concluded ... that the
petitioners are entitled to no relief,
that the court which rendered judgment
had jurisdiction, that the sentences
irposed were authorized by law and
are not otherwise open to collateral
attack on any of the grounds urged by
the petitioners, and that full and
complete enjoynent of the constitutional
rights of petitioners has been extended
them and has %n no way been deniedngr
infringed.™ United States v, Rosenberg
and Sobell, 106 F. Supp. 798, 800 :
(SQD.i“.Y.;’ aff'd. wo F. 2d 666 (C.Aoz’
1952), cert. denied 345 U.S. 965
rehearing denied, 345 U.S, 1003 {1953).




' This peﬁition ‘:I.s so entirely devoid of

omerit that perhaps it has been unduly dignified by the
minute consideration and analysis it has received in this
obinion. However, an‘cffbrt has beecn niade to lay to rest
with finality baseless contentions and accusations which
have been repgated not primarily to-aid the petitioner but
rather to ambarrass and injurc our courts and country.

The ancient writ of habeas corpus -- to which
Section 2255 is analogous -- is onec of the basic safeguards
of america's freedom. Its purpose is to ensure that no
man may bec held in confinement in violation of due nrocess of
law, and it imposcs a strict duty upon all officials
connected with the govermment -- state, local or national,
But there is an equal duty imposed upon attorneys whose
obligation it is to uphold the law, and the dignity and in-
tegrity of the courts, It is their duty as officers of the
court to cnsure that this great writ shall not be stripned of
its decp meaning throuzh & corrosive process caused by repeated
abuses of its processes. Four lawycrs argued these motions
for Sobell, Californiz counsel among them, and petitioner also
had the services of en cxpert on Mexican law. The two legal
mamoranda submitted, which ran to over one hundred pages,
and the numerous lengthy affidevits and exhibits indicaté

that an inordinate amount of tiue, money, effort and ingenuity

was put into this motion on pctitioner's behalf, If Sobell
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were an unlettercd prisoner, fricndless and without
funds, attaupting to cry out ™unfair®, his lengthy and
uttcerly meritless petition mizht not be such a gross
misusé of the Judicial prrocesses.

Undef the governing rulcs of law, Sobell
‘has becn given the benefit of any doubt., For that reasén
all his allegations concerning the allsged brutality and
illegality of his abduction were assuricd to be true for the
pruposes of these applications, Thorcfore, I have not
considcred in this opinion the question of his veracity.
But I find it difficult to beclicve that a man who was scized
and blackjacked; as he claiuas, would not have immediatcly
shouted out this injustiqe to the world and would have
held silent for six months rriqr to his trial and then
throughout thc trial, helding back his story as a
sort of trump card. Expcerience dictates that human beings
do not re-act that way.

The ease with which the petitioner
tars 21l associzted with the crosecution in the foce of a
clear record which proves the contrary is truly startling.
As was recently said of anothoer priscner who engaged the
courts endlessly with meritless petitions, " 'He is

smart, shrewd and rgsodrceful.' Thus he khows how to make

L6



charges so wild ..s as t¢ induce a concern for their

refutation that othaurvisce he would not command." United

S;ates v. Tramaglino, Court of Apjpeals for the Second Circuit,
June 4, 1956,

| From petitioner's unfounded attacks against
the men who conducted the prosccuticn of his case, it is
obvious that he belicves in the breadside attack, painting
with brocd stroke and recklessiy maligning 211 who partiecinated
in the process cf bringing him to justicc. (19)

| During the coursec of ny delibcerations on this

matter, as on other mattoers involved in this case from its

inception, there have been many attempts to bring extra-

judicizl utterances and actions!to ny attention. MMany of

these have been designed to influcnce judicial deteminaticn

R

in a way that is 2lien to ocur judicial process --- and in some
instances they constituted a subtle‘attack upon it..

Freedom of speech should and does permit untrammeled dis-
cussion and differences of cpinion, but judici:zl impartiality

requircs that the courts be free from extranccus and con-

(19) In this connection, it is intaresting to
ncte that the petiticner brands the FBI
as an cgeacy of oppression, ignoring its
reputation for high standards of fairness,
These hizh standords were rccently praised
by the Court of Anpecls for this Circuit in
an opinion by Judge Frank, who is well known

\ . for his outspcken attacks on any fom of

| police brutality. Sec United Ststes ex- rel,

i ' - Santo Caminito v, Murphy, 222 F. 2

03-704 «A.2,1G55).
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fiicting pressures. Therefore, the Ancrican judicial

systun has cvclved its cwn szfegucrds and procedures

for arriving at the truth -- procedurcs waich have wiﬁh-

stocd the test of the centuriés. Thcse nrrcedurcs and -

saf egucrds have been the scle guidepssts fir this Court.
The moticns znd the files and records

of this casc show cdnclusively thot the priscner is entitled -

tc no relief, Motions denicd.

Dated: Now Yerk, N.Y.
June 20,1956.

IRVING R, KAUFMAN
U.5+0.d,
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Editors’ Preface

T HE ROSENBERG-SOBELL case has been, since the demise
of germ-warfare charges, the chief weapon in world
Communism’s campaign of calumny against the United
States. Trading on a good deal of sincere revulsion against
the death sentence passed on the convicted espionage agents,
the Communists have attempted to picture the initial trial
and its subsequent judicial reviews as part of a gigantic
frame-up, engineered by the Federal Bureau of Investiga-
tion to destroy non-conformist opponents of the burgeoning
fascist state. According to the Communist legend, the anti-
Semitic FBI (in the manner of the Gestapo) systematically
manufactures evidence, suborns perjury, commands judges
and prosecutors to do its bidding, and even rigs juries.
This caricature of American society, of course, is and has
been of greater moment to world Communism than the
question of capital punishment or the specific fate of the
Rosenbergs. ‘

A prime weapon in this campaign is a propaganda book
by John Wexley, published last year by the pro-Communist
firm of Cameron and Kahn, entitled The Judgment of
Julius and Ethel Rosenberg. Though almost every page of
this tract reveals its Communist bias to those who have
studied the record, it has had considerable effect outside
the United States.

According to the Daily Worker of May 10, it was this book
which Morton Sobell’s mother and sister, who had themselves
refused to answer questions about Sobell’s activity on the
ground that a truthful answer might tend to incriminate
them, left with Bertrand Russell shortly before he blasted
the American judicial system in the Manchester Guardian.
Russell’s chief authority for chastising the FBI, “the atroci-
ties of whose techniques we have been made familiar with
in other police states such as Nazi Germany and Stalin’s




Russia,” is Corliss Lamont, whom he identifies merely as
“of the well-known banking family.” (This is about as
accurate as identifying the Dean of Canterbury, who ve-
hemently endorsed the germ-warfare hoax, as “the well-

known Christian dignitary.”)
* 'We are not concerned, here or elsewhere, with defending
the FBI, Scotland Yard or any other institution against
criticism; we are concerned that the criticism be informed
and not an echo of baseless propaganda. Nor do we believe
that the espionage networks set up by the Kremlin in other
countries establish the guilt of the Rosenbergs; it is the-
evidence in the case alone which, objectively examined,
makes their guilt plain beyond reasonable doubt. Such an
objective examination is the aim of this special section,
sponsored by the Tamiment Institute. Those who remain
unconvinced are invited to read the verbatim trial record.

Nathan Glazer, one of. our leading young sociologists, is
a former associate editor of Commentary and of Doubleday
Anchor Books. He is co-author with David Riesman and
Reuel Denney of The Lonely Crowd and author of a forth-
coming book on American Judaism. Currently working
under a grant from the Fund for the Republic, he has made
a special study of the evidence in the Rosenberg-Sobell case.

FREE REPRINTS of this sudy

are available from '
The Tamiment Institute

. 7 East Fifteenth Street
.. NewYork3,N.Y.




HAT MORE can be said about the Rosenbergs? They were convicted in

March 1951 of conspiring with Morton Sobell, who was tried with them,

and with Anatoli Yakovlev (then presumed in Russia), David Greenglass

and Ruth Greenglass, to deliver American military secrets to Russia. David

Greenglass, Ethel Rosenberg’s brother and the chief Government witness,

reported how, in 1944 and 1945, he had given information on Los Alamos and

" the atom bomb to Julius Rosenberg. On his furloughs, he reported to Julius

directly; on other occasions his wife Ruth and Harry Gold served as couriers.

* Ruth and Harry Gold corroborated his story, insofar as it related to them, on

the witness stand. Harry Gold knew nothing of Julius Rosenberg, but he testi-

fied he had been given one-half of a Jello box-side by his Soviet superior,

. Yakovlev, as a means of recognizing Greenglass—and the other half, the
Greenglasses testified, had been given to them by Julius Rosenberg.

Small points in the Greenglass story received independent confirmation.
Ruth’s sister testified, in support of one detail in Ruth’s testimony, that at one
time Julius had come to confer privately with Ruth, and had asked her, the
younger sister, to go into the bathroom. The Rosenberg doctor testified that
Julius had asked him about what inoculations were needed for Mexico. A
photographer testified that the Rosenberg family had taken passport photo-
graphs. The latter two incidents occurred at the time, just after the arrest of
Harry Gold, when—as David testified—he, David, was being encouraged by
Julius to flee, and Julius himself was making preparations to flee.

Aside from David and Ruth Greenglass, the only other testimony directly
relating Julius to espionage was that of Max Elitcher, a former classmate of
Julius’s and Morton Sobell’s at City College, who reported he had been
encouraged by Rosenberg and Sobell to give them secret material for trans-
mission to the Soviet Union.

Julius and Ethel Rosenberg took the stand in their own defense, and denied
everything in the story of the Greenglasses and Elitcher that concerned
espionage. Rosenberg had visited Elitcher, but not to solicit information;
Julius had asked Ruth’s younger sister to let them speak privately, but only

~ at Ruth’s request; he had spoken with his doctor about inoculations, but at
David’s request; the Rosenbergs might have taken pictures, but not passport
pictures. They were, in effect, the only witnesses for the defense, for the other
defense witnesses (there were two) testified briefly to inconsequential details.

The jury believed that the Rosenbergs were lying. The trial was appealed
again and again, on all kinds of grounds. And to a layman like myself, read-
ing the records of the trial, it is amazing that where so much latitude to chal-
lenge is given, some challenge did not stand, and the Rosenbergs were not
freed, as Judith Coplon was freed, and so many other people whose guilt, to

ordinary common-sense judgment, seems clear. But it seems the district attor-

neys and the judge had avoided the hundred errors that superior courts, made
more than normally assiduous by the sentence of death, would have found. The
statute was constitutional, the indictment had been properly drawn, the evi-
dence had been presented without error, the sentence was legal, and 27
months after their trial the Rosenbergs were executed.

S4

W}{AT MORE was to be said? As Justice Clark of the U.S. Supreme Court
said the day before they were executed, “Seven times now have the
defendants been before this court. . . . Beginning with our refusal to review
the conviction and sentence in October 1952, each of the Justices has given
the most painstaking consideration to the case.” '

But much more was to be said, because there were in effect two Rosenberg
trials, one of which was conducted in the courts and the other outside—one
might say, indeed, in the streets, for it was conducted with leaflets and peti-
tions and appeals and protests, and, in this country, rarely broke into the
respectable mass media. The first Rosenberg trial came to an end: The Gov-
ernment won its case, every possible legal issue was settled, and the Rosen-
bergs were executed. But the trial in the streets goes on, and the Rosen-
bergs do much better there than in the courts. They are so successful in the
second trial, not because the evidence on which they were convicted was not
good, but because their punishment was so awful. '

For the trial in the courts, there was only one issue—had they received
justice? 'No matter what superior judges thought about the death sentence,
this was their only consideration in studying the case (though, as Judge
Jerome Frank said, in the first—and most important—decision of a higher
court, “Since two of the defendants must be put to death if the judgments
stand, it goes without saying that we have scrutinized the record with ex-
traordinary care to see whether it contains any of the errors asserted on this
appeal.”—R*1644). o

For the trial in the streets the matter was quite different: There the most
powerful issue was that the Rosenbergs were to be—and eventually were—
executed. And since so many people (and I was among them) did not be-
lieve the Rosenbergs deserved death, it was possible to raise up around the
world a deep feeling that something had gone wrong, and it became possible
for those fighting the trial in the streets to tap a powerful emotion in sup-
port of their cause.

The defenders of the Rosenbergs confused the two trials, and the two
issues, and enlisted the strong feeling that existed against the death sentence
in support of the claim that the Rosenbergs were innocent. ' Even if many
people who pleaded for mercy for the Rosenbergs did not themselves con-
fuse the two issues—guilt or innocence on the one hand, the death sentence
on the other—the defenders of the Rosenbergs, in disregard of the facts,
imposed this confusion upon them. .
. I have recently read the last and presumably most definitive compilation
of the case in favor of the Rosenbergs—John Wexley’s The Ordeal of Julius
and Ethel Rosenberg. And on the first page we see the confusjion clearly
in operation. Mr. Wexley writes: “ . . . if the Rosenbergs were truly inno-
cent, why had they been put to death? One could not airily dismiss as Com-
munist propagandists men like Dr. Harold Urey, the Nobel Prize winner, or
Rabbi Abba Hillel Silver. . . .” But Rabbi Silver did not believe the Rosen-

*“R** refers te the published transeript of the Recerd of the trial.



bergs were innocent. He pleaded for mercy for them, but he wrote: “I have
accepted the verdict of the courts in their conviction of the Rosenbergs for
violating the espionage laws. . . . The crime of which they have been found
guilty is a heinous one, and I have found no sympathy in my heart for men
and women who betray their country.”

In the courts, the defenders of the Rosenbergs conducted a skillful and
tenacious defense, based on the closest analysis of the records and the facts.
In the streets, quite a different defense was conducted, and the two defenses
were kept rigidly separate. The facts of the courtroom would do no good in
the streets; the distortions effective in the streets would do no good in the
courts. Only at the very end did the two cases for a moment merge. On
June 8, 1953, Emanuel Bloch pleaded before Judge Kaufman for a reduction
of the death sentence, in part on the basis of a huge mass of letters assidu-
ously collected by the committee defending the Rosenbergs from all parts
of the world. Judge Kaufman had before him, in addition to this impressive
mass of correspondence, the Government’s analysis of it, which pointed out that
“the letters submitted show clearly that the writers based their opinion upon
falsification of the record. . . .” One of the letters came from a sponsor of
the committee defending the Rosenbergs (Waldo Frank) who admitted he
had not examined the evidence! What could the statements of such people
—regardless of their positions and their eloquence—mean to judges and
lawyers who had lived with the case for years and who knew every line of
the record?

But now, since the first trial is over, even the mild restraint it imposed on
the conduct of the second has been lifted. The first trial recedes in memory,

its principal facts are forgotten, and even those people who were once most.

certain that justice had been done—at least to the extent of believing the
Rosenbergs were guilty—wonder: What would a reading of the trial record
show today? Were there holes? Has new material been brought to light
that might, in any way, have served to save the Rosenbergs from the verdict
which years of legal struggle could not set aside?

I have just read again through the record of the trial and the numerous
appeals and other legal motions that followed it; and I would like, wearying
and saddening as such a task is, to review some of the features of the case—
the first case, the one in the courts. It will throw an interesting light on the
case in the streets that is still being carried on. ’ ‘

N THE TRIAL of the Rosenbergs, both sides knew that the verdict would

depend on whether the jury believed the Greenglasses or the Rosenbergs.
The charge was conspiracy to deliver secrets, and hv the nature of the charge
there was no tangible evidence.to he presented. There was no corpse with
wounds and gashes that might reveal anything. The “secrets” still lay in
their filing cabinets and in the minds of men—the only question was whether
they were still secrets, and this could be known only by the report of men who
asserted they had indeed passed on these secrets, in one form or another, to a
foreign power.

sé

Let us review for a moment how it came to pass that the Rosenbergs were
on trial for their lives. In September 1945, Igor Gouzenko had left the So-
viet Embassy in Ottawa, Canada with an incredible collection of documents
—authentic records kept by an official Russian agency on its espionage ac-
tivities. One of the contacts mentioned in these documents—under a code
name—was Alan Nunn May, a British scientist who had worked on atomic-
energy problems in Canada and had recently returned to England. Nunn
May was arrested and sentenced by a British court to ten years’ imprison-
ment in May 1946. :

Another figure mentioned, with a code name, in these‘documents was a
professor of mathematics, Israel Halperin. Halperin’s address book con-
tained the names of a number of other penple who, it turned out, were in-
volved in some way in the Soviet spy net in Canada. It also contained the
name of Klaus Fuchs. But it was three years later that the FBI—acting per-
haps on this bit of information, among others, for the basis of their suspic"‘
has never been made clear—informed the British that a leak of secre
formation on the atom bomb must have occurred. After some discussion®
with British security officers, Klaus Fuchs confessed to having given the
Russians very important secret information while he was working on the
atom bomb in the United States, as well as before and after in England. He
led American FBI agents to his courier, Harry Gold, who also confessed.
Harry Gold then led them to another person from whom he had collected in-
formation, but whom he had met just once, and this was David Greenglass.
David Greenglass was questioned by FBI agents, and corroborated Gold’s
story and added yet another link in the chain—Julius Rosenberg, his brother- -
in-law. Greenglass reported the main points of his espionage activities and
mentioned the name of Julius Rosenberg even before he got in touch with a
lawyer. '

At Rosenberg the trail stopped. He denied everything. 'The investiga-
tion turned to Rosenberg’s friends. Morton Sobell left for Mexico a few
days after Greenglass’s arrest. Another friend of Julius Rosenberg's, Vivian
Glassman, had gone to Cleveland to see an old classmate of his, an impo:’

d

scientist, William Perl. Alfred Sarant, another friend, had decamped

parently to Mexico. It seemed there was something that could be told by
Rosenberg and his friends—if they would tell. But the line of detailed con-
fessions that had begun with Fuchs petered out at Rosenberg and his friends—
there one found flight, evasion, and silence on the basis of a plea of possible

- self-incrimination.

But, of course, little if any of this was known to the jury that tried Rosen-

" berg. In the courtroom, it was his acts, not those of his friends, however

suspicious, that were at issue. And to decide who told the truth about these
acts, as we have said, the jury could not, by the nature of the case, refer to
any tangible evidence. They could only observe the behavior of the Green-
glasses and the Rosenbergs on the witness stand, and put it togcther with
small fragments, each by itself—and conceivably all together-—meaning
nothing or little. 1 would like now to reprint, frcm the record of the trial,
some of the things they heard and saw. (And one must reccll thai here is a
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dead stenographic report, while the actual jury. heard and saw tones of voice

and gestures that they could interpret as confidence or confusion, certainty

orhesitation—and it is because they could take all this into effect, and we

who read the record cannot, that a superlor court does not argue wrth the.

jury’s decision as to what are the facts in a case.):

THEL ROSENBERG is being questioned about a console table concern-
ing which Ruth Greenglass had testified that Ethel had told-her it was:
a gift from Julius’s “friend” (presumably his Russian espwnage contact).

and adapted, in some not very clear way, for microfilming:

Q. Did you ever put that table in a closet?

A. | may have. L _

Q. Did you? ' '

A. I really don’t recall whether 1 did or not.

* Q. Did you ever hide the table in the closet? '

‘A. No, that I can answer. I never hxd anything in the closet, table or any-
thmg else.

“Q. 1 am talking now oi the closet opposrte the bathroom door?:-

A. Yes.

'Q. Did you ever put thnt table in the closet and keep xt there?

‘A. T said I may have.

Q. Well, did you or did you not?

A.' 1 can’t recall. Just a moment.: There were so many chnnges that I
made in the house, with putting things in closets and taking them out of
closets, that it is perfectly true what I say, that I may or may not have put

it there, and I cannot recall, because there were any number of things I put’

into closets and took them.

Q. The console table was practxcally as wide as the entrance to the closet,
was it not? - o

Al wouldn’t know. :

Q. Well, how wide was the console table?

A. Again, I just couldn’t say.

Q. If you had put the console table in the closet, when would that have
been? : -

AT couldn't say when that might have been. (R 1358-9)

.

And now, Evelyn Cox, who had worked for the Rosenbergs asa domc.mc, .

is testifying:
Q. When did you work for them?

A. From September ’44 all though [sic] ’45.* SR

toe

Q. Did there come a time when you noticed that the’ table wasn’t where
you had last seen it in the apartment? -

A. Yes. ,

Q. And what did you notice about that?

®A line of space indicates the emisien of part of the tmrd—;uoully uduuu on technical. loul 9omu

of me bearing on the sstual testimeny.

A. Well, the table wasn't there. It wasn't where it usually stayed and I
asked her why she had removed it, and she said she had put it away in the
closet because the place was too congested.

Q. Did you ever see the table outsndo agam in the living room— N

A. No.

Q. --up'to the time when you left workmg there in Deoember of 1945?

A. No, I never saw it.

Q. Was there any other piece of furniture in that apartment as new or as

* good looking or as nice as that table?

ANo

The Court Was there any other furniture in the cloaets"
The Witness: No. -

Q. Now, how long did the Rosenbergs use this cousole table hef‘
was put into the closet? -
A. Well, that I couldn’t say. I don’t know; it was outside mayhe a month

-or two months, I couldn’t say, I don’t know. (R 1407, 1411-12, 1414)

A very small point, of course. Now a shghdy larger poml Here Iuluu
is testifying:
Q. Did you, in the month of June 1950, or in the month of May 1950

‘have any passport photographs taken of yourself?

A. No, I did not.
Q. Did you go to a photographer’s shop at 99 Park Row and have any

"photographs taken of yourself?

A. T have been in many photographers shops and had photos taken.

Q. Did you have any taken in May or June of 1950?

A. I don’t recall. I might have had some photos taken.

Q. For what purpose might you have had those photographs taken?

* A. Well, when I walk with the children, many times with my wife, we
would step in; we would have [sic] we would pass a man on the street
one of those box cameras and we would take some pictures. We would
into a place and take some pictures and the pictures we like, we keep.

The Court: He is not asking you that. He is asking you about these par-
ticular pictures in June 1950. What was the purpose of these plctures"

The Witness: Just—if you take plctures, you just go in, take some pic-
tures, snapshots.

Q. What did you tell the man when you asked hlm to take those ‘pictures
in May or June 1950?
. I didn’t tell the man anything.
Are you sure of that? , .
. 1 don’t recall telhng the man anytl'un .
See if you can’t recall. Try hard. May or ] une 1950, at 99 Park Row.
: T don’t recall telling the man anything.

O POPO>

What did you tell him—



A. I didn't tell him anything.

Q. —at the time that you had the pictures taken?

A. What pictures are you talking about?

Q. In May.

The Court: The pictures at 99 Park Row.

The Witness: I don’t know if it was 99 Park Row that I took the pictures.

Q. Where was it, if you don’t know it was 99 Park Row?

A. I don’t know. I have taken many snapshots.

Q. Passport pictures?

A. Not passport pictures.

Q. Did you ever tell anybody that you wanted pictures in order to go to
France to settle an estate?

A. 1 didn't tell that to anybody.

Q. You don’t recall it, or are you sure you never said that?

A. 1 am sure 1 never said that.

Q. Now, do you recall, or are you sure now that you didn’t have any pass-
port pictures taken in 99 Park Row, in May or June 1950? -

A. I may have taken pictures, not—I didn't take ‘any passport pictures.

Q. May or June 19507 ,

A. I might have taken pictures. (R 1277.9)

And now Ethel:

Q. Did you ever go with your husband to have any passport photographs
taken?

A. No. . : _

Q. Did you ever go to a photographer’s place at 99 Park Row in May or
June of 1950 with your husband and with your two children to have passport
photographs made?

A. No, I never went to have.any passport photos made. .

Q. Did you ever go to a commercial photographer at any time in the
last two years to have any pictures made of you or your family or your hus-
band or all of you?

A. Yes, we did.

Q. When?

A. From time to time, ‘

The Court: When was the last?

Q. When in the last two years?

A. Well, it is hard to say exactly when in those two years. °

Q. How often did you go to have photographs made with your family?

A. Well, we never went as a prearranged thing to go and have photos
taken.

Q. When did you go on the spur or the inspiration of the moment?"

A. 1 really can’t say when.

By the Court: i

Q. Well now, you remember the month of May very well, dont you?

A. Yes.

Q. You remember the month of June 1950 very well?

A. Yes.

Q. You remember all the incidents that have occurred?

A. Yes.

Q. Did you have any pictures taken for any purpose whatsoever in May
or June 19507

A. We may have; we may have.

Q. Do you remember where?

A. No, all I remember was some commercial photographer.

By U. S. Autorney Saypol: ' :

Q. Do you remember posing with your family before the camera of that
commercial photographer?

A. Yes.

By the Court:

Q. How did you happen to go to that particular commercial photogrnpher”.

A. Well, I didn’t say I went to any particular commercial photographer.

Q. Well, you just remembered posing before a camera?

A. Yes.

Q. Then you remember, you say, having had some photographs tnl:en in
May or in June?

A. It may have been at that time. I am really not sure. There were so
many frequent occasions when we dropped into these places.

Q. I'am talkmg about the very last ones that you had taken.

A. Well, I can’t say what I don’t recall and I really don’t recall specifically.

By Mr. Saypol:

Q. Well, we have it now at least that the photographer, the commercial
photographer, was within walking distance of your home at 10 Monroe
Street; is that right?

A. Well, there were times we took walks and took photographs elsewhere.

Q. We are now talking about the time that you last remember, within the
two years, when you went with your family to a commerclal photographer.
to have a picture taken or pictures?

A. But I didn’t say that we took a walk this parucular time to this par-
ticular place.

Q. Where was it?

A. I wouldn’t know. (R 1361-2, 1363-4) ‘

And now Ben Schneider, whose place of business is at 99 Park Row, and
who does “passport and identification photographs " is testifying:

Q. Last May or June or some time in the spring or summer, were you
visited by a family consisting of a huaband and wife and two chrldren,
your place of business?

A. Yes, sir.. ”
Q. About how old were the children, do you remember?
A. At that time they appeared to me about six and four.
Q. Do you remember on what day of the week it was?
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. On a Saturday.
. Is that a day-that you usually. worked?
No.
. Is that how. you remember this visit?
Yes, sir.
Do you see the two adults here who visited you at that time?
Yes.
. Will you point, them. out, please. Where is the man and where is the
\an? :
. {Pointing) There is the man.
You mean the man standing up?
Yes.
Is that the woman [indicating defendant Ethel Rosenberg] standmg"
That is.the. woman.
. Did they have some talk mlh you"
The man did. . : i
Did they order some pictures taken?
. Yes, they had some pictures taken.’
‘What do.you charge for pictures, passport pictures?
. Well, T charge three for & dollar, sir. ‘
. Q. Did you do some work for them as a result of their commg there that
mormng" :

A. Yes.

Q.: What kind of work dld you do?

A. They ordered three dozen photographs, passport size.

Q. Do you get an order like that every day?

. A. No, I do not.

Q. How much was the price?

. A. .About nine dollars.
.~ Q. Did they pay you?
. A, Yes, they did.

Q. Did you take pictures of the children, too?

A. Yes.

Q. Passport pictures?

A. Yes, passport size.

Q. Did you have any conversation with the man or the woman, that you
have just identified, regarding the. use to which they wanted to put the
photographs?

- A. Yes. As he was leaving he was. tellmg me they were going to- F rance;
there was some property left; they were going to take care of it; the wife—
that is, his wife was left some property. (R 1427-9)

Once again, Ethel Rosenberg is testifying:

By Mr. Saypol: i

Q. At that time, when you were before the grand jury, had 'you dnscussed
this case with your brother, Davnd Greenglass?

A. NO . B . . o
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Q. Not at ali?
A. Not at all.
Q. That is, from the time when you ﬁrst heard that he was being investi-
gated for the theft of atomic secrets, up to the time when he was arrested?
A. That’s right.
Q. You never talked to him about it at all?
A. No, I did not. I didn’t see him.
Q. Do you remember having been asked this question before ‘the grand
jury and giving this answer:
“Q. Did you-discuss this case with your brother, Da\nd Greenglnss”’
“A. I refuse to answer on the ground that this might tend to incrimi-
nate me.” :

Was that question asked and did you give that answer?
A. Yes.

The Court: ... . If you had answered at that time that you had not spoken to  «
David, for reasons best known to you, you felt that that would incriminate you?
The Witness: Well, if I used the privilege of self-incrimination at that time,
I must have felt that perhaps there might be something that might mcnmmate
me in answering.

. Q. Were you asked this question and did you give this answer:
“Q. Do I understand that you are going to decline to answer all ques-
tions that I ask you?”
“A. No, no, I won't decline to answer all questions. It depends on the
questions,”
Did you say that?
- A. Yes, I did.

. Q. When you said it depends on the questions, you meant it depends on
whether or not the question and the answer that you gave would tend to
incriminate you, is that right?

.. A. That is right.

: Q. You testified here today in response to questions from your counse
(hat the first time you saw Harry Gold was in this courtroom, is that so?

. A. That is right.

Q. Do you remember having been asked this question and giving this
answer: “Q. Have you ever met Harry Gold?” “A. I decline to answer on the
ground that this might intimidate me, incriminate me, I mean.”

Did you give that testimony at the time?

A. I gave that testimony.

Q. Do you remember being asked this question  and giving this answer:
“Q. You don’t deny that you met Harry Gold?” .
“A. I gave my answer. I decline to answer on the ground that it might
tend to incriminate me. That was my answer.”
Do you remember that question and answer?



A. Yes, I do.
Q. The next question was:
“Q. That was your answer to the first question, and the second ques-
tion was, you don’t deny that you met Harry Gold?”
“A. 1 decline to answer on the ground that this might tend to incrimin-
ate me.” ,
Is that the testimony you gave at the time?
A. Yes, I gave that testimony.
By the Court:
Q. But you did answer it here in court, isn’t that true?
A. That is right.
Q. And your answer here was that you never met him until he took the
witness stand ?
A. That is correct.
Q. So that you didn’t assert any privilege with respect to that here in this
courtroom? ' ~
A. No.
By Mr. Saypol:
Q. Were you asked this question and did you give this answer:
“Q. Have you ever talked with your brother David about his activi-
ties at Los Alamos?”
“A. I decline to answer on the ground that this might tend to in-
criminate me.”
Was that testimony given by you?
A. Yes.

Q. “Q. Have you ever seen any sketches that he made while he was work-
ing at Los Alamos?” “A. I decline to answer on the ground that this
might tend to incriminate me.” Was that testimony given at the time
by you?

Yes.

Q. “Q. Were you present when he gave information to your husband,
that is, when David Greenglass gave information to your husband which
be had obtained from Los Alamos?” “A. I decline to answer on the
ground that this might tend to incriminate me.” Did you give that testi-
mony at the time?

A. Yes, I gave that testimony.

Q; Now, you came back before the grand jury on August 11, didn’t
you? '

A. Some time after the first time.

Q. Did you talk to your lawyer between August 8 and August 11?

A. T must have. i

Q. Do you remember having been asked this question and giving this
answer: - :

“Q. I believe you had counsel?”
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“A. Yes.”

“Q. And you had been advised by your counsel as to your rights?”
“A. Yes.”

“Q. That counsel is Emanuel Bloch, is that correct?”

“A. Yes.”

Do you remember that testimony?
A. Yes.

Q. You denied here that you knew Anatoli Yakovlev, is that sight?

A. Yes. .

Q. Were you asked that question before the grand jury?

A. 1 don’t recall. ,

Q. “Q. Do you know Anatoli Yakovlev?” “A. 1 decline to answer on
the ground that this might tend to. incriminate me.” Were you asked that
question and did you give that answer?

A. Now that you read it, I suppose they did ask me that, and I did answer
that.

Q. And yet you had never met Yakovlev in your life?

A. That is right.

Q. Would you care to explain how you might be incriminated on the basis
of that question and answer?

A. It is not necessary to explain the use of self-incrimination.

Q. Do you recall having been asked this question and giving this answer:

“Q. Would you care to attempt to identify his picture?”
“A. I would not care to attempt.”

Is that your testimony?

A. Yes.

Q. Why didn’t you want to care to attempt to identify Yakovlev if you
never saw him before or had never seen him before?

Mr. E. H. Bloch: I object to the question on the ground, that if the witness
purported to answer this question it would vitiate her privilege. :

The Court: Well, you refuse to answer because of your privilege?

The Witness: Yes.

The Court: I want the jury to understand that I am permitting this ques-
tion, as I said before in answer to counsel’s objection, on the question of
the credibility, of the witness. The witness has answered the question here
in court and on previous occasion had asserted privilege. As I said before,
there is no interest to be drawn from the assertion of privilege against self-
incrimination, but it is something the jury may weight [sic] and consider
on the question of the truthfulness of the witness and on credibility, and -in
the charge proper, my main charge, I will have more to say about how yo
judge the credibility of witnesses. . . . (R 1375-95) :

I'r was on the basis of exchanges like this that the jury>must have decided

that the Rosenbergs were not telling the truth, that they had much to hide,
and that the story David Greenglass and Ruth Greenglass and Max Elitcher



had to tell was indeed true. The fate of the Rosenbergs was sealed by this
‘testimony, and ‘the numerous: appeals their lawyers made, on all sorts of
grounds—the constitutionality of the statute, the conduct of the judge, the
environment created by press reports, the charge that the Government used
false testimony (we will go into this in a moment)—all this could ‘not stand
against the impression Julius and Ethel Rosenberg made on the jury in the
courtroom. S
And about exchanges such as these, what could the defense say? In the
courts, ‘nothing. ' But in the streets—as we may see from Mr. Wexley’s book
—the matter is much simpler. The testimony about the console-table that
we have here given is ignored. Nor is there any reference to that-long
stretch of testimony in the trial in which Ethel’s answers to the ‘questions
about espionage before the grand jury were read to the jury. (Mr. Wexley
‘becomes very eloquent in defense of the use of the Fifth Amendment:when
one is asked about political activities. - But how' could he explain the: Fifth
‘Amendment in answers to such questions as: Do you know Harry Gold?- On
such matters, he simply suppresses the testimony.) The testimony about
the photographs is indeed discussed, but only to argue at great length'that
Schneider committed “perjury.” Here is one of those cases of “perjury” that
the defense later “discovered” and of which it has made great capital—
among people who have not read the record. Let us consider it. o
At one point in his examination by .the Government attorney, Schneéider
‘was asked, “And is that the last time you saw him [Julius Rosenberg]: before
today,” and he answered, “That’s right.” Now in fact Schneider had been
brought to the courtroom the day before to identify the Rosenbergs. This
was to become one of the bases for a formal request to set aside the con-
viction, but it was obvious to the courts—as it would be to anyone reading
through:the testimony—that Schneider had taken the question to mean, “Have
you seen him between the time he came in to take pictures and this tiial?”
: As the Court of Appeals, dismissing this point, said, “Counsel lays stress upon
the word ‘today’ [in the question and answer above] to prove the testimony
perjurious, but 'on cross-examination both court and counsel [that is, defense
counsel] treated the question as meaning ‘before the trial.’” While this dis-
missal .was binding on Mr. Bloch, and he had to seek new grounds for
“further appeals, it is of course not binding on Mr. Wexley, who denounces
- Schneider as a perjurer, the FBI agents for soliciting this perjury, the Gov-
.ernment attorneys for knowingly using it, etc. ' '
-~ But even though much has been made by the defense of Schneider’s perjury,
~it was clear that the main problem, at the trial and after, was to shike the
‘testimony of David and Ruth Greenglass. S Co
Once again, it was easy to shout perjury in the streets, impossible to demon-
strate it—or even make a good case suggesting it—in the courts. The
Greenglasses and the Rosenhergs lived on the Lower East Side, surrounded
"by many relatives and friends. ::One might have expected to find—if the
Greenglass story was not true—someone who would contradict one 6f an-
“other point. After all, their story was long and circumstantial, while the
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Rosenberg story was, on the whole, limited to simple denial. The Greenglass
story thus offered more points for investigation and contradiction. The de-
fense, however, did not find a single witness who could refute any point in:
their account, no matter how insignificant. - S

Then again, another opening offered itself in the fact that David Green-
glass had given many statements, over a period of nine months, to the FBI
and to his lawyers, the firm of O. John Rogge. Conceivably one could have
found contradictions between the story he told the first day, to the FBI, the
story he told to his lawyer, the story he later told to the FBI, the story he.
told on the stand.” Had the defense seen any ground for hope that the ex-
amination of these statements might show some contradiction, they could have
obtained them—as they had, earlier in the trial, obtained the FBI statements
and grand-jury testimony.of Max Elitcher (the defense found nothing in
these statements on which to cross-examine Mr. Elitcher). They did n

make any efforts to get Greenglass’s FBI statements—and this, too, must® |

have weighed heavily with the jury. But, as we were to learn two years
later from-an affidavit from O. John Rogge, Mr. Bloch did try to find out .
what David. Greenglass was going to do: ’ :
“Within a week or ten days of the arrest of David Greenglass, in June 1950,
I had [a] conference with Mr. Bloch. . . . Mr. Bloch stated to me that Julius
Rosenberg: was not going to talk and was interested in finding out what
David Greenglass was going to do. I did not indicate to him the course
David Greenglass would take.” (Affidavit of O. John Rogge, June 8, 1953,
supported by another affidavit by Herbert J. Fabricant, present at the con-
ference.) -.It was unnecessary. for Mr. Rogge to find out what Julius Rosen-
berg. was going to do—at any rate, among the many affidavits of Mr. Bloch
in the record there is none that so charges. : : .
Two: years after the trial, someone managed to steal the memoranda of
the first meetings between David and Ruth Greenglass and their lawyers
from Mr. Rogge’s office. These only showed what Mr. Bloch had known
at the trial—that David Greenglass had told the same story from the begi
ning. By that time, however, the trial in the courts and the trial in th
streets had merged—and poor Mr. Bloch had to make a great show of
these documents as proof of “perjury.” The courts had O. John Rogge’s
affidavit to -help them in considering these claims: R
“. . . Mr. Bloch stated [in a conference in Mr. Rogge’s office on May 4,
1953] that the handwritten memorandum of David Greenglass . . . contained
less material than he himself had brought out on cross-examination of Mr.
Greenglass but that if he did not use the statement he would be accused by
the National Committee to Secure Justice in the Rosenberg Case of throwing
the .case. . He further stated that this memo undermined one of his basic
positions, in that it showed that in the original statement that David Green-
glass had made to the FBI he brought in Julius Rosenberg, whereas it had
been his, Mr. Bloch’s, position that the FBI had induced David Green-
glass at a later time to bring in the name of Julius Rosenberg.” (Mr. Wexley,
as we might expect, does not tell his readers about. this affidavit.) :
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So David Greenglass, these statements showed, had told the same story
from the beginnmg But the defense tried a more roundabout way of sug-
gesting perjury. It argued: David Greenglass was a simple machinist; the
sketches he produced at the trial—and which he testified were copies of
sketches he had given to Julius Rosenberg and Harry Gold—could have been
made only by a person of considerable scientific trammg, therefore, he could
not have produced them and must have been coached in producing them.
In two and a half years, the defense was not able to come up with a shred
of evidence about this presumed coaching. But a year and a half after the
trial the defense counsel produced, in one of his briefs, affidavits from
scientists in France and England asserting that it was “improbable” or “im-
possible” that David Greenglass, whom they did not know, could have pro-
duced these sketches, which they had not seen. While such testimony may
carry great weight with some of Mr. Wexley’s readers, it obviously could
not be taken very seriously by the appeals court.

As a matter of fact, the defense was willing to admit that Greenglass could
. have drawn three of the four sketches in question—those bearing on his own
work as a machinist. But they argued these were not very important and
could not really be considered secret. At the trial the testimony was quite
otherwise—and devastating.

Here is some of the testimony of Dr. Walter Koski of Johns Hopkins Uni-
versity, who had been engaged in implosion research at Los Alamos, and
who had brought work to the Theta machine shop in which Greenglass was
a machinist:

Q. I show you Government Exhibit 2. . . . Will you examine that, please?
Do you recognize that exhibit as substantially [sic] representation—as a
substantially accurate replica of a sketch that you made at or about the time
which you have testified to at Los Alamos in connection with your experi-
mentation?

A. 1 do.

Q. Is that a reasonably accurate portrayal of a sketch of a type of lens,
mold or lens that you required in the course of your experimental work at
the time?

A. Tt is.

. Q. Would you recognize it as a reasonably accurate replica of the one
you submitted to the Theta machme shop?

A. Yes.

- Q. For processing?

A. Yes.

Q. I show you Government’s Exhibit 6, as to which you have heard Mr.
Greenglass testify, and 1 ask you whether your answers are the same in re-
spect to that exhibit after you have examined it? .

A. They are.

- Q. Now, in respect to Government's Exhibit 7, will you examine that,

please, Dr. Koski? Having examined it, having heard Greenglass’s testi-
mony Ias to what it depicts, will you tell us whether it is famnhar to you?

A Tt is

Q. What does it portray to you?

A. It is essentially—it is a sketch, a rough sketch of our experimental set-
up for studying cylindrical implosion.

Q. Did you hear Mr. Greenglass testify as to the description, written
ducr;pnon of that experiment that he delivered to one Harry Gold in June
19457

A. 1did. '

Q. Is Government’s Exhibit 7 and the details of the information as testi-
fied to by Mr. Greenglass that he.said he imparted to Gold in June 1945
a reasonably accurate—are they reasonably accurate descnpnons of the ex-

periments and their details as you knew them at the time? . . :

A. They are. A

Q. That is the experiment that you yourself were conducting in conjunc-
tion with the development of the atomic bomb?

A. They are.

Q. In your special field as you knew it at the time, 1944 ‘and 1945 did
you have knowledge that the experiments which you were conducting and
the effects as they were observed by you could have been of advantage to a
foreign nation?

A. To the best of my knowledge and all of my colleagues who were in-
volved in this field, there was no information in text books or technical
journals on this particular subject.

Q. In other words, you were engaged in a new and and [sic] original
field? .

A. Correct.

Q. And up to that point and continuing right up until this trial, has the
information relating to the lens mold and the lens and the experimentatio
to which you have testified continued to be secret mformatlon’

A. Tt still is.

Q. Except as divulged at this trial?

A. Correct,

Q. ... is it not a fact that one expert could ascertain at that time, if shown
Exhibits 2, 6 and 7, the nature and the object of the activity that was under
way at Los Alamos in relation to the production of the atom bomb?

A. He could. (R 473-4, 478.9, 484)

HIS testimony, of course, is not to be found in Mr. Wexley’s book. Mr.

Wexley has no difficulty in proving the Greenglasses are perjurers by
suppressing some evidence, doctoring the rest, and, where necessary, invent-
ing some. We have given enough examples of suppression. Consider this
particularly ingenious example of doctoring:
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David Greenglass testified, and Ruth corroborated him, that on his furs

lough in early 1945 he had been invited to the Rosenbergs for dinner and
on coming there had been introduced to Ann Sidorovich, who then left.
(In Mr. Wexley’s account—page 358—she is.described as “an old friend

. who had dropped in for an afternoon chat.” We are not told that this
old friend was then living in Cleveland—see R 1201.) Julius then told David
that this was the courier who might come to get material from him in New
Mexico after his return. But why was it necessary to show her in person?
asks Mr. Wexley. Do we not read in the record:

“Q. [to Ruth Greenglass] Had you met Ann Sidorovich prior to that
evening?

“A. Yes.”

“Why,” continues Mr. Wexley, “if the two women had previously met
each other, was it necessary for Julius to arrange this mutual inspection
meeting?” (page 360)

He has conveniently forgotten that David had earlier testified that he had.

not met Ann Sidorovich previously (R 444).

And, where necessary, he invents. For example, on page 85: “David had -

engaged in considerable black-market activities in Albuquerque, selling pre-
cision tools and other Army materials. . . . It is also known that David had
actually stolen . . . a sample of uranium . . . and had thrown the uranium
into the East River.” This sober documenter then footnotes the entire para-
graph as follows: “These facts concerning the theft and disposal of the
uranium . . . were later revealed by the confidential inter-office memos of O.
John Rogge.” But the “black-market activities”? They are the invention
of Mr. Wexley’s mind, but it will take a reader skilled in working with
falsification to realize that the footnote refers only to the latter part of the
paragraph and that there is no evidence for the first part.

I HAVE reread the record of the trial and the appeals with a mind made
open by a few years in which the recollection of the actual events had
grown dim, and peppered with the doubts left by even a book as despicable
as Mr. Wexley’s, and, having done so, there is no doubt in my mind, nor do
I see how there can be any doubt in the mind of any reasonable man, that the
jury decided correctly. Of course, no matter how monstrous a criminal (and
the Rosenbergs were not monstrous), if he insists he is innocent someone
will believe him and be touched by his plea. If juries numbered a thousand

men, no man would be found guilty, for guilt is never a matter of irrefutable

mathematical proof. Yet for twelve carefully selected men, no reasonable

doubt remained that the Rosenbergs were guilty.

But there is that other issue: Should the Rosenbergs have been executed?
This, too, apparently, is in our courts a subject for argument, and there was
much good argument on both sides of the matter, by the defense counsel, the
Government attorneys, and the judge. It was pointed out that Fuchs had
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received the maximum sentence under British law (and he had confessed
and aided further investigation), that Gold had received the maximum jail
sentence under American law (and he, too, had confessed and aided further
investigation) ; should not the Rosenbergs receive the extreme penalty under
American law? It was argued by the defense that, while the crime was commit-
ted in wartime, the secret material was passed to an ally; the answer was that
the law specifically makes no distinction. At the very end, it was argued that
the Rosenbergs should have been tried under the Atomic Enepgy Act, not the
Espionage Act, and this act requires jury approval of a death sentence, but
the Supreme Court decided this argument had no merit.

In the end, one’s attitude to the death sentence is not decided by arguments.
For each of us, there seems to be an appropriate sentence for every crime:
A burglar should be jailed, a vicious murderer should be put to death. But
someone who gives away his country’s secrets? I could not feel that th
crime deserved death; and many other people did not feel this, either. Cer®
tainly it seemed particularly cruel to execute Ethel Rosenberg, whose activities
consisted of helping her hushand. But the law permitted it, the sentence
was imposed, and then there was little one could do. One could ask for
mercy, and many people who believed the Rosenbergs guilty did, but cer-
tainly many others must have recoiled from becoming involved in a cam-
paign based on lies. In the end, one feels, our argument must be more with
the law that permits execution for this crime than with the sentence that .
imposes it in accordance with law.

HE Rosenbergs are dead and, in the minds of their defenders, already
T vindicated—the Daily Worker regularly couples their names with those
of Sacco and Vanzetti. And around Morton Sobell, the third defendant,
sentenced to 30 years in prison, a new agitation now rises to a peak, and
people who have not looked at the evidence now assert that Sobell is inno-
cent and should receive a new trial.

“What does the record show about Sobell? * Sobell was accused by only on.
person—his close friend Max Elitcher, who had gone to school with him}
lived with him in Washington when they both worked for the Government,
and later, when they were both married, lived in a house adjoining his in
Flushing, New York. Elitcher gave a long and circumstantial account of a
series of occasions on which Sobell had urged him, alone or together with
Rosenberg, to aid them in their espionage activities. In Elitcher’s case, as
we have pointed out, the defense did examine his statements to the FBI and
his testimony before the grand jury, and they found nothing in these records
on which to question him. -

But more damaging than anything said about him was Sobell’s own be-
havior. A few days after Greenglass was taken into custody, Sobell and his
wife and family left for Mexico. Nothing illegal there, as his attorney
pointed out. But a week after he left he wrote to a friend, William Dan.
ziger, who testified at the trial. The envelope bore a return address under
the name “M. Sowell” and contained some letters, with a note: “Please for- -
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ward the enclosures and I will explain when I get back.” Two weeks after
that, Danziger received another letter, this time with the return address “M.
Levitov” and further enclosures. At the trial, Mexican witnesses testified—
and documents were introduced—to the effect that he had registered in a Vera
Cruz hotel under the name of “Morris Sand,” giving a Philadelphia address;
in a Tampico hotel under the name of “Marvin Salt,” giving a different
Philadelphia address; and had traveled on the Mexican airlines under the
names “N. Sand” and “Morton Solt » A neighbor of his in Mexico City
testified Sobell had asked about ways of getting out of Mexico without papers.

This strange behavior, taken together with Elitcher’s testimony, obviously
pointed to flight. At this point, there was a simple way of proving this was
not flight. Sobell could have taken the stand to explain that this was a vaca-
tion; his wife and his relatives and friends and employers and co-employes
could have been called to corroborate him. But Sobell did not take the stand
himself, and no one was put on the stand in his defense.

He now argues, in a long affidavit written two-and-a-half years after the
trial, that this was just a vacation trip, and since he was frightened by the
arrest of his friend Julius Rosenberg—which occurred three weeks after his
arrival in Mexico—he began to use aliases. “. . . it is hard to understand how
I might have been led to do such a stupid thing. . . . ” It is harder to under-
stand why it took him two-and-a-half years to explain why he had done it. For
as late as January 8, 1953 he had not yet thought of an explanation. On
that date, his lawyer was arguing for a reduction of sentence before Judge
Kaufman, and the following exchange occurred: .

“The Court: What about the aliases?”

“Mr. Meyer: As to that, I am not in a position to state. I could probably
make an explanation after consulting with Mr. Sobell about it.” (page 33 of
the stenographic transcript of the hearing of this date)

Sobell’'s wife and mother have been heroic in their efforts in his behalf, but
their efforts have come at the wrong time and the wrong place. They were
called before the grand jury investigating the matter in 1950. At that time,
they pleaded the Fifth Amendment (pages 19-20 of the same hearing).

Sobell’s successes in the streets, we can be sure, will mean nothing in the
courts; for the courts know how late Sobell’s explanation is, and they know
that Sobell’s wife and mother have not told what they know about his activities
under the protection of the Fifth Amendment. This is their right, but they can-
not expect to be believed when they tell in public a story of innocent activities
which would in no way—had they told it before the grand jury under oath—
have incriminated them or Morton Sobell.

The defenders of the Rosenbergs and Sobell believe the whole story has not
been told. They are quite right. Rus the story that has not been told is of
espionage more extensive than we now know. When Rosenberg was impli-
cated, the FBI had never heard his name before. Greenglass had never heard
of Sobell or Elitcher. What then happened is that the FBI began to approach
Rosenberg’s friends—a group of men who had studied engineering together
at City College, graduated before the war, and who had all been involved,

directly or indirectly, in the activities of the Young Communist League—and
began to question them on what they knew of Rosenberg. Three of these men
were out of the country—]Joel Barr, Alfred Sarant and Morton Sobell—and
the latter two had left so recently as to suggest flight. Sobell was returned to
this country—the FBI has not been able to locate the whereabouts of Barr or
Sarant. A fourth, Elitcher, as we know, gave testimony against Rosenberg and
Sobell.

A fifth, William Perl, the most important scientist among them, took a mid-
dle course—and ruined his life as a result. He would not plead the Fifth
Amendment. At the same time, it was clear he knew more about the case than
he would tell. He was questioned by the grand jury investigating the case on
August 18, September 11 and October 4, 1950. He denied he knew Rosenberg
or Sobell on his first appearance before the grand jury, but later admitted he
knew Sobell. He admitted he knew Barr and Sarant, but testified, when first
questioned by the FBI, that he had “minimized his connection with them.” In
time, his denial of friendship with Rosenberg and Sobell was to lead to a trial
for perjury and a sentence of five years.

But Perl did not deny everything, and he told one story to the grand jury
that suggests the wide extent of Rosenberg’s activities. (The Government
asserted at his trial that he told as much as he did because he suspected, at the
time of Vivian Glassman’s visit, that he was under surveillance.) He testified
before the grand jury that late in July—just after Rosenberg was arrested—
Vivian Glassman suddenly materialized in his apartment in Cleveland.

“I recognized her as a friend of Joel Barr’s. . . . She acted somewhat mys-
teriously. She proceeded to take some paper which I had lying around and
started writing on it and motioning me to read what she had written, and, well,
she wrote to the effect that she had instructions from a person unknown to her,
in New York, to travel to Cleveland and get in touch with an aeronautical
engineer [Perl was one] and give him money and instructions to leave the
country, and I believe she mentioned Mexico in that connection.”

More than that Perl would not say, except that the name “Julius Rosenberg™
came up in the subsequent discussion with Vivian Glassman. He would not say
that Rosenberg had sent her, nor would he definitely indeed say anything—as
to who the aeronautical engineer was, as to why Vivian Glassman was doing
this, as to why anyone wanted him to leave the country. He said he simply
did not know.

But the record made clear that Perl, for reasons of his own and to his own
undoing, had decided to tell only part of what he knew. The other part we do
not know—Julius Rosenberg certainly knew it, Vivian Glassman could also
tell us, and so could, very likely, Joel Barr and Alfred Sarant. But the names
of Barr, Sarant and Glassman do not appear in Mr. Wexley’s book. The
defenders of the Rosenbergs have not brought them forward to plead the
innocence of their friends—or to clear their own names of the strong suspi-
cion of Soviet espionage that now is attached to them.

The story is not yet completely unfolded. When it is, it will not clear the
names of Julius and Ethel Rosenberg, or free Morton Sebell from jail.
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U.S. Department of Justice
Washington, D.C.

Dear Mr. Nichols: | O,
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Judge Kaufman instructed me to
nd you the attached pamphlet entitled "I.F.
'Stone's _Weekly" of July 2,1956, which contains

an article labelle Time for New Tacties on_
RosenBeng -Sobell,. Too " which pamphlet was handed

to the Judge Just before he left for Santa Fe,

New Mexico, He thought it would be of interest
to you,
I also acknowledge receipt of
your letter of July 3rd enclosing photostats . 6?5"'—’/

of articles relating to the Sobell case,.

NFORMATION, CONTAINED )
ﬁLﬁ‘Ré\N xz }f %ﬁmsu Lg {,;/ m-.&.‘f&%.-/&w

DAT te JUL 17 1956

Sincgrelx yours
RECORDED - 52 - X/

(NDEXED - 52 - Secretary to
Y*’/’ Judge Irving R.Kaufman
A”Wosscrﬂ £ NV Y
Enclosure ) —‘7£;‘~
" EX-109

3‘5@' %L’/
@—a 1 89?«; ‘.'?‘:-‘:2 C | %/
—

B3 3JUL-231953




257'!
&

. " L

L
]

]

B

_ VOL. IV, NO. 24

R

. .o '.‘_' LI ,.‘.'

~~¢,.. -

How The Bouse Committee “thkmaﬂed” Arthur Miller, See Page 3

b

 LF. Stone S.Wéekly

JULY 2, 1956

@ 10t

WASHINGTON D. C.

_ 15 CENTS ";

Tlme for NeW Tactlcs on Rosenberg-Sobe]L Too

While the Communists ace takmg a second look at so much
in their recent past, we suggest they take a second look too at
the Ros Sobell case. If they really want to help poor
Sobell, the time has come for a change of tone and tactics.

The Rosenberg case suffered from the fact that it became a

" propaganda weapon in the cold war. The agitation was con-
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“ducted in so shrill, hysterical and mendacious a way as to of-
:"" fend many who might have been won over by sober presenta-

tion; the intent was so clearly to defame the Umted States as
unnecessarily to antagonize.
It should be evident now even to the Commumsts in the

light of the Krushchev revelations that the Rosenbergs were

treated a good deal more fairly here than Slansky and other
Jewish victims of Stalinist justice. By American standards, the

+ Rosenberg case is unsatisfactory. The discovery of the console .
';\ table merited a new trial; the Supreme Court never reviewed

_'the case; the way the Douglas stay was steamrollered was

;" scandalous; the death sentence—even_ 1f they were gmlty—— '

was a crime. . <]

S5SNI PUOURD PR N P

Equating Truman Wxth H:tlerl R ﬂ :

But the Communists also have cause for sha.me The false'

cry of anti-Semitism, the eagerness abroad to use the Rosen-
bergs to equate the US.A. of Truman with the Germany of
Hitler, the wild cries of frame-up, sacrificed calm considera-

tion of the Rosenberg case to the needs of world Communist

propaganda. After all, no picket lines circled the Kremlin to
protest the executions of Jewish writers and artists; they did
not even have a day in court; they just disappeared. Slansky
was executed overnight without appeal in Prague. How the

* same people could excuse Slansky and the “doctor’s plot” and

at the same time carry on the Rosenberg campaign as they did
aalls for political psychiatry.

Yet the same tactics are evident in the campaign to free So-
bell. The 30 years to which he was sentenced are fantastic; his
incareration in Alcatraz cruel; the proof against him far from
conclusive. But that letter of Bertrand Russell’s to the Man-
chester Guardian in March, with its comparison of Nazi and
FBI “atrocities,” is in the strident and hysterical tradition of
the Rosenberg ¢ampaign. Jean Paul Sartre’s in the New York
Times of June 15 was not much better. Such letters—for all
their good intention—will not help Sobell nor will they help
in the struggle to purge men’s minds of fear, hysteria and hate

so that we may live toge?er on the one planet.

The result of the kind of campaign reflected in the Russell
and Sartre letters is the kind of mtemperate decision Judge
Kaufman handed down last week rejecting Sobell’s appeal for
a new l[ e “ava-

lanche m Hﬁ% mjz oot-
DAT EIN @SECLASSIFIED f

a2

‘note which claims for the FBI a “reputation for hxgh stnndards

of fairness,” the Kaufman decxsxon reacts thh febrile over- -

statements of its own.
The FBI certainly does not have a reputatxon for “high
standards of fairness” as scores of loyalty cases in Washington

testify. On the other hand, it is vicious nonsnse to compare

the FBI with the secret police of Germasiy and Russia. God . - .
help us if we ever get to the point where the FBI can do here ~* ~..
what the Gestapo did in Germany and the secret polxce can L

still do in the Soviet Union.

-The Kaufman decision will be appea.led Legally Tam a.fmd‘ R
that Judge Kaufman has the better of the argument; I did not - -
think the Sobell pleadings substantial enough for a new trial ’
when I first saw them. These same questions should have been -
raised at the original trial; they are not new; they were raised -
five days afte: the tna.l ona motxon in arrest of ;udgment. ST

False Hopes Raised ST

False hopes were stxmulated fa.lse unpressxons ngen by tlns -
“motiim for a new trial. ' It was not based on néw evidence
tendmg to clear Sobell; it claimed that his lndnappmg in Mex-
ico was a violation of our extradition treaty with that country

B e ST

and therefore if this was proven true at a new trial he should - 7.’ 3
be released. The Sobell defense wxll have to do better if xt is

to free him.

We suggest that ‘the ﬁrst step in freemg Sobell wou.ld be tJo -. w
free his case from the burden of using it to prove the Rosen-
bergs victims of a frame-up. Three books have now been writ- -

ten on the Rosenberg case but none of them prove this. Wil-
liam A. Reuben’s tried to prove too much—that there never
was any atomic espionage. John Wexley's is brilliant but a
‘quicksand of surmise and dubious inference. The new one, by
Professor Malcolm P. Sharp, “Was Justice Done?”, helps to
demolish its predecessors but is itself inconclusive.

We just don’t know enough yet. Both the Rosenberg and
Sobell cases are so unsatisfactory because it is 2 question of one
man’s word—one alleged conspirator’s word—against an-
other’s. Who was telling the truth—the Rosenbergs or Green-

glass? Who was telling the truth—Sobell or Elitcher? It will -

be a long time, if ever, before we know for certain. We may

wake up one morning to learn that the Rosenbergs were guilty. ,

We may wake up to learn that they were innocent. But I doubt

whether we will ever find there was a deliberate frame-up. = -

Fanaticism had the same momentum on both sides. .
But guilty or innocent, Sobell has a case for clemency, as did

the Rosenbergs. The 30-year sentence is beyond all reason.’

The time has come to make an appeal for the man Sobell, and
to divorce his case from the Rosenberg cult and cold war
political frenzies. A - :
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Why Wilson Was ’l‘alkmz Plain *e When He Called The Budget Fi “Phony” |
. The Fundamental Tssues Poscd by the An' Forcc Vlctory

The vote in the Senate lsst week increasinz the Air Force
budget by almost a billion dollars is a political event of the
first magnitude. It shows the effect of trying to run the gov- .
ernment without a President well enough to lead. It indicates

that, from a sickbed at least, even General Eisenhower’s great - »

prestige as a soldier is not enough to overcome the efforts of
the aviation lobby in Congress. It demonstrates a dangerous
tendency by the military successfully to go over the heads of
the civilians in supposed command at the Defense Depart-
ment. It indicates that even as against big business men like
Charles Wilson and George Humphrey, the Air Force crowd
can win—imagine what they could do with liberals in com-
mand, susceptible as they would be to Red smear. The vote
also threw a spotlight on where the Democrats stand—for
the arms race, with Malone, Welker and McCarthy, the Right-
ists of the Republican party. And the arms race means a drift
to war. The aviation industry and the Air Force have a vested
interest in world tension and an emotional readiness for war.

Charlie Wilson may lose his job for not obeying the first '

rule of successful politics—which is never to upset that deli-
cate balance of mutual pretense and hypocricy which main-
tains a respectable facade for Congress and its members.
There never was 8 more phoney campaign than this one for
more Air Force funds. The Air Force has more money than

- it can use now; neither aviation plants nor Air Force person-

‘ed at the end of the fiscal year. .= ;.-

nel are adequate now to its vast appropriations. Senator .
Byrd gave the figures to the Senate in a last ditch effort to
block an increase. They are fantastic. He said that as of July 1
this year, the end of the fiscal year, the Air Force had $13,-
600 millions in unexpended balances for aircraft procure-
ment, of which $4,600 millions were unobligated. He said the
Air Force will actually spend $6,400 millions for new afr-
eraft this year, which would leave $18 000 000,000 .\}nex?eng-

Encouraging Extravagance - -~

“To add another billion dollars to appropnahons,” Senator
Byrd pleaded, “would simply mean increasing balances in
carryover appropriations, which cannot possibly be spent in
the foreseeable future. It would not,” he added, “in my judg-
ment, bring a single additional aircraft off the production line
next year or the year after next. ... To increase these huge
unexpended balances would merely increase funds available
to spending agencies for expenditure in subsequent years,
with virtually no control by either the Appropriations Com-
mittee or by Congress. Extravagance mevxtably is the reault
of unnecessary appropriated balances.”-

Yet though these figures are well known and none chal-

© % ‘The leader ‘of the succssaful fight was sm
tion lobby’s man. The most serious technological aspect of .

o ‘-_‘ ’ Nothing lee A Nice Cool-

. Non-Sequitur On A Hot ST

. "' Day in Congress - 7 7
Mr. TUMULTY. Has any study been made or auy’ :

by the year 2,000 or aid to Tito by the year 2,0002 - .-

Mr. LONG. No, but I should uy that eoet wonld be
in excess of $200 billion. ... ~ . S

Mr. WILLIAMS. I requested the Library of Conzl'e-
some time ago to furnish me certain statistical informa-
tion. . . . Amazingly enough I found that we had given
away some $51 billion to foreign countries in the last 10
years. The cost of our entire veterans’ pension and
benefit programs from the Revolutionary War to the
present time amounted to little over $93 billion.

lenged them, nobody spoke up to defend ‘'
plain language about it. When Senator Russell of Georgia
said indignantly that Wilson “has sought to intimidate the
officers of the armed services from fully expressing their’
opinions to, and advising with, the Congress of the United
States,” no liberal or conservative rose to puncture this in-
flated language. Does Russell believe it good practice to en-

courage anarchy in the armed services, to destroy civilian -

control and sound budgetary practice by inviting the various
services to indulge in a scramble for .f.unds on Capltol Hill?

Buying Obsolete Planes

B —-'.., e, < -5’ - *..~

2

the avj,g-
these bloated figures is the encouragement they give to mass

production of obsolete planes. To provide funds now which " ;
cannot possibly produce planes for several years is to make -
contracts now for planes which will be out of date when ¥

they finally come off the produetxon Tlines.
The only answer to this is the kind of hysterical nonsense

" in which Byrd indulged when he told the Senate the vast

sums spent on the now obsolete B-36’s ($6 million apiece)

were not wasted because “the shadow of the B-86 in the skies

is what kept Russians behind the Iron Curtain.” The main
front at home in the fight for peace is the fight againat this -

aviation lobby, and here the Democratlc parl:y as a whole is

on the wrong side of the fence.

There are signs here in Washington that after the elec-
tion the Administration is planning for new policies on the
two world logjams—China and Germany. The marathon
talks with Red China at Geneva are to go until after Novem-
ber, when serious consideration of a meeting between Chou
En-lai and John Foster Dulles (if he is still Secretary of
State) will begin. Renewed warfare in Korea can alone
block a conference of this kind, and therefore Korea—Chiang
Kai-shek’s last desperate trump card—is the danger point to
watch,

On Germany, sentiment is bmldmg up within the Admin
istration for reunification in réturn for neutralization. Two
years ago when Senator Flanders of Vermont first broached
this idea he found “monolithic” Chis word for it) opposition
in State Department and White House. He indicated in
bringing the proposal up again last week in a Senate speech
that he is no longer alone in Republican ranks in this point

New German and Chinese Policies to Be Unveiled After the Election

of view. A similar idea is to be found in White House Ad-
viser John J. McCloy’s foreword to the book, “Russia and
America”, recently published by the influential Council on
Foreign Relations. McCloy went further than Flanders by
advocating acceptance of the Oder-Neisse hne as part of
such a deal. .

Dulles and Adenauer still oppose such a solntion, and s
breaking off of relations between Bonn and Moscow—if it
could be achieved—might serve to “refreeze” this part of the
cold war, temporarily at least. But such a move would be un-
popular in Germany. Flanders said his speech two years ago
brought unexpected response from the Germans themselves. .
“These correspondents,” he told the Senate of letters he re-
ceived, “had had enough” of German militarism. Flanders
also told the Senate, “When I was in Paris last summer, a
high placed public figure said to me, ‘We are in favor of
German reunification, but not too soon.’” .

projection been made of how much foreign aid will eolt : ‘

—House of Representatives, June 28. = .. |- :
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How The House

“Arthur Miller came out of his o Crucible” uoorly It

_was & painful experience to see him before his inquisitors. '_
His only ringing affirmation was on Republican Spain; he .

wasn't too intelligent in his replies on the Smith Aect; and
when he was asked whether it was true——Crime No. 1—that -

., _he had opposed the House Un-American Activities Commit-

tee, he responded with a mumble instead of a challenge. - -
Mlller s difficulty was that he had been “blackmailed.” The
Committee was able to put the screws on him (1) because he
had misrepresented to the New York Youth Board in 1950
the nature of the non-Communist oath he had taken at the -

State Department several years earlier for a passport and
(2) this ogth was itself brought into question because he had
once applied for membership in what Committee counsel
claimed was the Communist party and Miller said was only a
Marxist study group for writers. There was hardly grounds
“here for a perjury prosecution, but the Committee might have
threatened him with one anyway—and the Lattimore case
shows how much f.rouble they can create with how httle

; substance. -
... The Committee may make a hero of Mxller yet it it lnmsts -
- “on citing him for contempt because he refused to name others
~ at 8 Marxist writers’ session he attended. Chairman Walter,

at first hesitant, seems to have been put under pressure. The
history of inquisitions—from those of Spain to those of Stalin
—shows that a suspected heretic can only be broken morally -
and made fully captive by forcing him to inform on others,

especially those closest to him. Can the Committee overlook re-"

fusal to name names in Miller’s case and contmue to apply
the squeeze on others? -
The Committee taints all it touches. Honest differences of

i ‘opinion with the Communists, honest disagreements, and final

disillusion—Miller’s experience like that of so many other in-
tellectuals—are all made to sound hollow, false and ¢cowardly
_when a man has fo di discusg them. in such a forum..,This is-the
‘way the Committee dwarfs the moral stature of the anti-Com-
‘munist and makes him seem a heel. This is the Commxttee's
own secret contribution to Communism. . .-

" What would we think if a leading Russmn dramatxst—of

© Miller'’s prestige—were forced publicly in Moscow to explain

that he was anti-capitalist, with the threat of a perjury pros-
ecution hanging over him if he didn’t? What a belly-laugh we
would get out of the spectacle’ But isn’t that just what Wal-
ter and hias colleagues did in the Miller affair?

There were several amusing moments the press did not cov-

" er. One was when ex-FBI man Velde, chairman of the com-

mittee under the Republicans, assured Miller that it was no
"erime to be against the Smith Act. Another was when Chair-
man ‘alter admitted that he, too, had once made contribu- .
tions to the Joint Anti-Fascist Refugee Committee “to help

’&mcncan Commlttee “Bl‘gn"mea” Arthur Mlller.

- Deed-of-The-Week .

14 the Voice of America weren't frizhtened to desth,
of the volces-for-Fascism which infest our Congress, its
main propaganda feature of the week would have been
the decision by Peter J. Hoegen, legal referee of the So-
clal Securlty Administration, restoring the old age pen- .
sion benefits of William Z. Foster and six other Commu-
nist party leaders or their wivel under the Sodal Seeu
rity Act.

~ That an unknown minor official -hould utill Iuve the

courage and the power in times like these to reverse a
decision by the Department of Health, Education and
Welfare in favor of these seven elderly radicals is some-
thing which would really encourage America’s friends
abroad. If there was equal conscience in Congress, an
investlgating committee would find out who was respon-
sible in the first place for initiating so mean, petty, vin-
dictive and dangerous an action.

These Communists paid their social seeurity benefits
all these years and are entitled to their pensions; once
let the witch hunters apply political standards to social
security and they will be hounding in their old age
everybody who once gave $5 to Republican Spain in
their youth. Our hat is off to Mr. Hoegen. . - -]

get Jewxsh refugees out of Germauy
dark spots in our past, - -

Screwiest scene of all was the sppearance of Commitbee e
Counsel Ahrens, who helongs among the lesser clowns in Bar- - -
num & Bailey, as a great white knight of liberalism. He .-~
wanted to know why Miller hadn't defended the civil liberties, *
of Ezra Pound or protested when a 1950 civil liberties meet- -~

g run by the Communists (and.stampeded .into.folly by -

- gaul Robeson) had refused to defend Trotzkyites too under

the Smith Act. (A Committee member had to remind Ahrens

that Pound was convicted of war time treason—and not just -
put away, as Ahrens would have one believe, for writing anti- "~

Communist pamphlets.) Someone should have gotten up and
drawn a diagram for Ahrens. If Miller was wrong not to de-
fend the civil liberties of Fascists and Trotzkyites, how much
wronger is Ahrens who won't defend anybody’s civil liberties?

P.S. We wait to see whether the Committee by a contempt
citation and the State Department by refusing a passport
will have the nerve to trample on America’s deepest feelings
—is there a red-blooded American boy from six to sixty who'
does not hope some day to marry Marilyn Monroe?—and up-
set Miller's honeymoon plans. Surely, as at Lexington,
there is a point at which America will stand and fight. .

- . Thanks to the Supreme Court, The

Nothmg illustrates more vividly than the Braden case the
Supreme Court’s wisdom in deciding in the Steve Nelson case
that the Federal government should have exclusive jurisdic-
tion to prosecute for sedition, The 15-year prison sentence
thrown out by the Kentucky Court of Appeals on the basis
of the Nelson decision was striking evidence of how terribly
State sedition laws can be abused. When Carl Braden and
his wife helped a Negro couple buy.a home only to see that
home dynamited by hostile whites, who would have dreamed
that the “authorities—instead of punishing the dynnx:uters—-
would send Braden to jail for “sedition”?

State sedition prosecutions, like the Louisville and Pitts-
burgh cases, and those of the 20’s under similar State crimi-
nal syndicalism laws, show that the closer one gets to the
“grass roota” of society the more one is at the mercy of the
Iynch spirit and official 1awlesness. The Federal government

Braden Case Has A Happy Ending
operates on a higher level of sophistication and in an atmos-
phere which eliminates the cruder kinds of frameup. This is
worth consideration by those given to rhetorical democratic
flights of fancy about “the common man” and “the people.”
The Kentucky “common man” couldn’t have cared less. -
" The Kentucky decision will also upset the indictments of
Mrs. Braden and five other whites for “sedition” in connee-
tion with the same bombing. But will the Louisville Courier-
Journal, one of our better and braver newspapers, give Carl
his job back as a copy-reader? The American Civil Liberties
Union deserves applause for defending Braden and the
Emergency Civil Liberties Committee for raising his $40,000
bond. But why did the National Association for the Ad-
vancement of Colored People take so chilly an attitude
toward this case? And will Kentucky now find the men who
dynamited the Wade house and prosecute them?

It aeems we all have
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o The Untold Story of The Tense Day Before the President Fell Ill

Better Than L&vg

: In all the dmcussxonq of the President’s xllness, no .one
seems to have mentioned the extraordinary emotional strain
:to which he was subjected the day before his attack of ileitis,

Mr. Dulles that day forced him to issue a statement “correct- ° -
ing” his previous day’s press conference remarks on neutral- -

ism, a reversal that made Mr. Eisenhower look—and must

" have made him feel—very foolish. ' His Attorney General also .
* added to his strain that day. Originally Harry Cain was to

have seen the Président at 8:30 a.m. but at the last minute

the appointment was put off until 3:30 p.m. Mr. Brownell took

the 8:30 a.m. appointment himself and at 11:30 a.m. the chair-

. man of the Civil Service Commission went to the Wlnte .

House in order to “prime” the President against Cain. ... -

Quis custodiet? : Four classes of government employes 'only
are exempt from loyalty-security clearance in the Rees bill
(HR 11841) to establish a loyalty review system covering all

" Federal workers. The four exempt classes are (1) the Presi-

dent or Vice President, (2) any officer appointed by the Presi-

Fedcral Employes to ’I, Mercms of Brownell'

N

dent by and with the advice of the Senate, or by the President -

alone, (8) temporary construction or maintenance workers

employed at hourly rates and (4) “an officer or employe in the _
Federal Bureau of Investigation.” Since the whole loyalty

program depends on the integrity of the FBI in collecting so-

_called “derogatory” information, it seems strange that the

- FBI should be exempt from loyalty surveillance. We suspect

d loyalty check would tarn up a lot of strange characters on R

the FBI rolls. ... . i
Better Than The Walter-Eastland Bxll .

This Rees bill merits close study. The Wa.lter-Eastland blll' ’
(HR 11721 in the House), introduced immediately after the.
Supreme Court’s decision in the Cole case, is a skeleton stop-- -

gap measure designed to “reverse” that ruling and declare

that all government employes without exception are subjeat: ~

to the 1950 Act permitting “security” suspensions in the “ab-

solute discretion” of department heads. The Rees bill, intro- .

duced five days later, is a comprehensive measure for meetmg

the situation created by the Cole decision, which limited the.

1950 act to “sensitive” positions. It acquires weight in Con-
gress because its sponsor, Rees of Kansas, is the ranking Re-

publican on the Post Office and Civil Service Committee. .: -

Some strange history lies back of this Rees bill. Everyone
seems to have forgotten that it was a similar Rees bill in

1947, when he was chairman of this same committee, which.

led to the promulgation of the Truman executive order set-
ting up the first Loyalty Review Board. The. executive. order.._
was a last-ditch effort by the Democrats to block passage of

Next Week: Some New Angles on The Fuml for The Republic Report on The “Blacklut” ~i '
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"Small, But Still Mercies © ..

‘which the Federal employe may be
- cerned with protection of Federal workers would be well ad- -

_privately, as they otherwise will be, by Herbert Brownell and -

- the House and Senate Post Office and Civil Service commit-
- tees can be utilized to press for salutary amendments. : :

. tion when in its discretion “the interest of justice so re-

the Rees bill, and the mancuver succeeded. But as I pointed *- -

.- out in the newspaper PM at the time, the Rees bill actually - -

gave the Federal employe a little more protection against un- - :'“
founded aecuution and unfau- hearings than did the execu-, '

_ tive order. e

In any cue, so far has the drift gone, that the “reactlon-
ary” of 1947, sponsoring much the same bill as then, now - '~
seems to oﬂer the one hope of affording some basic safeguards . 3
to Federal employes in the “non-sensitive” departments mot :.-¥
covered by the 1950 Act. The Walter-Eastland bill would give
Federal employes no rights whatsoever; whether and how to
suspend or fire them, how much of the charges against them
would be disclosed—al) would depend on the department head. °
A hearing of a sort would be provided, but the word “hear-
ing” is a misnomer when there is no right to know the -’
charges, to examme the accusers, or to suspoena witneuea in

LW q‘?“ i

o
s
"
¥

There are, by contrast, small mercies in the Reee bﬂl for W
grateful. And those con- =

vised to fight out their battle in Congressional legislation
rather than to leave the new loyalty rules to be worked out

J. Edgar Hoover. The existence of the Rees bill might be used
to. block the Walter-Eastland measure, and hearings before

“Tt Would be better, of course, If we could shake off this
whole loyalty nightmare at least in “non-sensitive” positions:

. but that is still a long way off. We do not advocate the Rees

bill but in several respects it is superlor to Brownell's -
tices. The basic standard of the bill is better: “whether, aud
on all the evidence, there is a reasonable doubt of loyalty.” -
At present any doubt is enough for discharge. The FBI field’
report would be required to give “all evidence” pertaining to :
loyalty, not just “derogatory” information. The Loyalty Re-
view Board would be allowed to disclose sources of informa-

quires.” At present “security” and not “justice” is the stand-
ard in withholding sources. In addition the Board could re- °
quire the Attorney General to explain why an organization -
had been “listed” by him as subversive. These provisions, fee-
. ble as they are, would stl.ll EIYQ an employe more protection -
thanhehasnow. . ) . . K
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7/1/56

Dear Louisf:

In accordance with our telephone conversation
of today, I am attaching a copy of EdfDeGrazia's letter, and) __
several copies of Glazer's piece opthe Rosenberg-Sobell _‘_L_‘_\___
case. Iam also attaching a copy offDeGrazia's review of
Sharp's book, which has not yet béen published.
Edweard | . :
/s/ IrvingfFerman\ RoLse,

ALL INFORMATION CONTAINED

HEREIN IS uNgi ASSIFIED
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